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Directors’ report

JKX Ot & Gas plc Annual Report 2012

The Directors present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012

Principal activities, business review and future
developments

The principal activities of the Group are oit and gas
exploration, appraisal, development and production,
conducted through subsidiary undertakings

The Company 1s required by the Companies Act 2006 to
set out tn this report a fair review of the business of the
Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2012 and of the position of the Group &l the end of the
vear (the business review

A review of principal business activities and future
developments are set out in the following sections of
the Annual Report and these sections are incorporated
into the Directors Report by reference

Section Page{s)
Understanding JKX 1-14
Chief Executive s statement 26-27
Financial review 28-35
Operational review 44-63
Key performance indicators 18-23
Principal risks and how we manage them 36-43

Environment, Employment and Community
matters within the Carporate Social

Responsibility Review 64-77
Liqutdity risk management [note 14 to the

financial statements) 134
Currency and interest rate risk management

[note 14 to the financial statements) 135
Credit nsk management [note 14 to the

financial statements) 133

The Chairman s statement, Chief Executive s statement
and the Financial Review also include details of
expecled future developmentis in the business of

the Group

Results and dividends
The consolidated income statement on page 110 sets
out the results of the Group for the year

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
(2011 nil)

Going concern

The Board closely moniiors and manages its Liquidity
risk Cash flow forecasts are regularly produced and
sensitivitias run for different scenanos including but
not limited to changes in commodity prices different
production and tax rates in relation to the Group s
producing assets and delays to development projects

The Directors have reviewed the Group s forecast cash
flows for the next twelve months and through tc the end
of 2014 Capital and operating costs are based on
approved budgets and latest forecasts in the case of
2013 and current development plans in the case of 2014

In addition the Directors have made enquiries into and
considered the Ukrainian and Russian business
environments and future expectations regarding
country and currency risks that the Group may
encaunter

Having considered the sensitivities and potential
outcomes relating to these countiry and currency risks
and the Group s ability to change the timing and scale of
its discretionary capital expenditure the Directors
consider that the Company and Group have adequate
resources to continue for the foreseeable future The
going concern basis for the financial statements has
therefore continued to be adopted

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be
held at 19am on 5 June 2013 at the premises of The
Kings Fund, 11-13 Cavendish Square, London, W1G DAN

At the AGM, indmidual shareholders are given the
opportunity to put questions to the Chairman, the
chairmen of the Audit Nominations and Remuneration
Committees and to other members of the Board

The voling results are announced via the London Stock
Exchange as soon as practicable after the meeting

The anncuncement s also made on the Company s
corporate website

Notice of the 2013 AGM and matters of Ordinary
Business and those proposed as Special Business
together with explanatory notes, witl be sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the
meeting

Politicat and charitabte contributions

The Group made charitable contributions of $425,1%6
(2011 $476,812) for local educational, health and village
infrastructure invibiatives in Ukratne and Russta In line
with Group policy, the Group did not make any potitical
contributions during the year (2011 nil]

Dtsabled employees

The Group gives full considerationio applications for
employment from disabled persons where the
requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by
such persons

Should an existing employee become disabled 1t 1s
the Group s policy wherever practicable to provide
continuing employment under normal terms and
conditions and to provide training and career
development and promotion
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Shares in JKX 01l & Gas plc

Detaits of movements in share capital during the year
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements The
Company has one class of Ordinary Share which carries
no right 1o fixed income Each share carries the right to
one vote at General Meetings of the company There are
no significant restrictions on the transfer of securities

Treasury Shares

In 2012 the Company did not purchase in the market
any of 1its own ordinary 10p shares, to be held as
Treasury Shares At 31 December 2012, 402,771

(2011 402,771) shares continued to be heid as Treasury
Shares representing 0 23% (2011 0 23%) of the shares
then in 1ssue

Directors and thetr interests

The Directors and their interests at the beginning and
end of the year in the shares of the Company atl
beneftcially held, were as shown in the table below

Details of Directors remuneration and share options
are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 92 to
107 There were no contracls existing during or at the
end of the year in which a Director was, or 15, mateniatly
Interested

The share capital structure is Listed in note 151n the
notes to the financial statements and the significant
holdings are listed below

Directors’ indemnities

As permittec by the Articles of Association, the
Directors have the benefit of an indemnity which 1s 3
qualifying third party indemnity provision as defined by

Directors’ interests

Section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 The indemnity
was In force throughout the last financial year and s
currently in force The Company also purchased and
maintained throughout the financiat year Direclors and
Officers liabibity insurance in respect of itself and its
Directors

Signiftcant contracts and transparency directive
information

There are a number of agreements that take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Cormpany such as commercial contracts finance
agreements, property lease arrangements and
employees share plans None oithese 1s considered to
be significant 1n terms oi their Likely inpact on the
business of the Group as a whole Furthermore, the
directors are not aware of any agreements between the
Company and its directors or employees that provide for
compensation for loss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid

Eventis after the reporting date
Events after the reporiing date are discussed in note 34
to the frnanceal statements

Creditor payment policy and practice

It 1s the Company s policy that payments to suppliers
are made 1n accordance with those terms and
condilions agreed between the Company and its
supplters providing that atl trading terms and
conditions have been complied with The Company has
no trade credrtors (2011 nonel

1 January 2012 31 December 2012 5 Apnl 2013

Ordinary Share Ordinary Share Ordinary Share

Number Number Number

Nrgel Moore 14 000 29000 29,000
Dr Paul Davies’ 3,632 272 34632272 3,632,272
Cynthia Dubin - 40,000 40,000
Peter Dixon 163179 163179 163,179
Martin Miller 190 000 120000 190,000
Dipesh Shah OBE? 5.000 10490 10490
Lord Oxford 94 000 94,000 24 000
Alastatr Ferguson - - -
Richard Murray [appeinted 1 January 2013) Not applicable Not applicabte -

1} DrPaul Cavies interest is partly indirect wath 1 975 000 ordinary shares held intrust the beneficrary of which s the farmily of Or Paul Davies Of the remaining
ordinary shares 1000 are held by Mr D Davies the son of Or Paul Davies with the balance held directly by Dr Paul Davies

2) Dipesh Shah sinterest1s held by members of his immediate family
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Substantial shareholders

At 31 December 2012 and at 5 April 2013, the Company
had received notification from the following institutions
of interests in excess of 3% of the total number of voting
rights of the Company [see below)

Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The responsibility statement set out below has been
reproduced from the Annual Report and Accounts,
which will be published in Apnit 2013, and relates to that
document and not this announcement

The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge

« The Group financral statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards | IFRSs ] as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities financial position
and profit and loss of the group

The annual report tnclides a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and
the financiat position of the group and the parent
company, toegether with @ description or the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

31 December 2012 5 April 2013

31 Decemnber 2012 % of total 5 April 2013 % of total

Number of shares voting rights Number of shares voting rights

Ralkon Commercial Ltd 47,276,752 27 48% - -
Eclairs Group bimited - - 47287 027 27 55%
Glengary Overseas Lid 19,656,344 ¥142% 19 656 344 11 45%
Aberforth Partners 11,773,103 6 84% 13413103 781%
Interneft Ltd 11368 460 661% 11 368 460 6 62%
Blackrock Investment Management [UK] 10899 171 6 33% 9 249 504 539%
JSC Naftogaz of Ukraine 7957 214 579% 7 957 214 580%
The Boston Company Asset Management 6,752,574 392% 8254 347 481%

S b Gons

By order of the Board
Limor Gonen
Company Secretary
8 Apnl 2013
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Corporate governance

Governance principles
Good governance ai all levels 1s taken seriously at JKX
and the Board set the tone and take the lead

The Board s policy is to ensure that good practice flows
throughout the Group It 1s committed to drving cur
strategic prioriiles designed to significanily enhance
shareholder value at the same time securing our future
and further developing our processes and procedures

During 2012, we continued to strengthen our internal
control and risk management processes and we
continue to ernbed these right across our operations
across the Group

The Board I1s committed 1o the principles of the revised
UK Corporate Governance Code { the Code | which was
pubtished by the Financial Reporting Council in May
2010 and which was updated in September 2012

Role of the Board

The Board provides leadership to the Group The Board
1s responsible to shareholders for leading developing
and protecting the interests of the Group and detwery of
sustainabte financial performance and long-term
shareholder value

Key maliers reserved for the consideration and the
approval of the Board are

* setling and monitoring Group strategy

review of Group business plans, trading performance
and cosls

review and approvai of the annual operating and
capital expenditure budgets

approval of capital investment projects across the
Group

examination of acquisition gpportunities, divestment
possibilities and significant financral and eperatienal
Issues

-

remuneralion pokicy [through the Remuneration
Commiitee)

appomntments 1o the Board [through the Neminations
Commuitee) and senior management appointments,
Committee membership and remuneraticn for
Directors and sentor management

review and approval of the Company s financial
slatements

*

setting any interim dividend and recommendation of
the final dvidend and

Ll

ensuring that the significant business risks are
actively manmitered and managed using robust control
and risk management systems

All other authorities are delegated by the Board,
supporied by appropriate controls, to the Chief
Executive Otticer on behalf of senior management

Board effectiveness

How the Board functions
The Board has six scheduled meetings each year and
arranges additicnal meetings if the need arises

During 2012 there were 8 Board meetings (2011 9)
In addition, the Board meets at least annually to
consider strategy

The Chairman, in consultation with the Executive
Directors, sets the agenda for Board meetings All
directors receive comprehensive documentation prior to
each meeting on the matters to be discussed

In addition to Board meetings, the Non-Executive
Directors rmeet in private sesston both as a group and
without the Chairman, at teast once annually to discuss
current 1ssues affecting the Group

Financtal reporting

In Light of the recent challenging economic times we
continue to focus on more accurate, efficient and timely
financial regorting and have reduced the internal group
monthly management reporting timetable by several
days during 2012

The Group continues to maintain an effective and
reliable accounting and management information
system

Board briefings

The Board receives consolidated monthly management
reports outhining all material operational, financial and
strategic developments The consclidated reports
comprising hnancial information from all parts of the
Group include actual performance agatnst budget and
forecast for oil and gas production, sales and costs, and
provides the Beard with information on 1ssues including
debtors, the cash position, cash flow forecasting and
the hinancial implications of key sensitivities including
changes in commodity prices, production and exchange
rates These reporls ensure that members remain
properly briefed on the performance and financiat
position of the Group

All directers are encouraged to participate in site visits
to the Group s operations and to engage with local
employees Except for Richard Murray, who was
appomnted on 1 January 2013 all of the current Board
members have visited our operations in Ukraine and
Russia during 2012

The Board has adopted a policy whereby directors may
in the furtherance of their duties seek independent
professional advice at the Company s expense During
2012 no director sought independent legal advice
pursuant to the policy

Each director has the benefit of a deed of iIndemnity
from the Company and sts subsidiaries in respect of
claims made and habilities incurred In either case
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Board composition
B Executive Girectors
BB Non-Executive Directars

anstng out of the hona fide discharge by the director of
his or her duties The Company has also arranged
appropnate insurance cover In respect of legal action
against directors of the Company and its subsidiaries

Committees of the Board

The Board has established a number of standing
committees to assist the Board by focusing on
specialist areas which are ultimately accouniable to it
These comprise

* the Audit Committee
+ the Nominatiens Commitiee
s the Remuneration Committee

The Board committees meet independently and provide
feedback to the main Board through their chairmen

The roles and activities of each of these comnuttees
during the year are noted below

Composition of the Board, independence and
commitment

AL 1 January 2013 the Board comprised a Non-
Executwe Chairman, four Executive Directors ang four
Non-Executive Direciors

The Board has reviewed the independence of each
Non-Executive Director None of the Non-Executive
Directors whoe has served during the year had any
material business or other relationship with the Group
and there were no other matters thal were likely to
affect their independence of characler and judgement

It 15 the Board s view that the Non-Executive Directors
have sufficient time to fulfil their commitments to the
Company and no Executive Director holds a Non-
Executive Directorship, or Chairmanship, in a FTSE 108
company

Board skills, experience and responsibilities

The majonity of the Direciors have extensive knowledge
and experience of the ol and gas industry and bring
other relevani experience required by JKX to achieve its
sirategic goals Director brographies are provided on
pages 78 and 79

Board skills

B Geology

M Enginesring

M Financial

M Russa and Ukrame

The Non-Executive Directors bring a broad range of
skills, experience and expertise which allows them to
chalienge eitectively, independently and constructively
the performance of the Executive Board and their
sirategy

Board changes

In July Sir lan Prosser resigned from the Board to
pursue other inierests and Nigel Moore was voted
unanimously by the Board to assume the post of
Chairman At the same trme Dipesh Shah became the
Senlor Independent Director

Following an exiensive search by an external advisory
firm Richard Murray was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2013 and was
subsequently appointed as Chairman of the Audit
Committee and as a member of the Remuneration
Committee

Richard has recently retired from the position of Audit
Partner at Ernst & Young after more than 35 years of
service and after becoming partnerin 1984 Richard
brings significant financial and international business
experience to the Board

Senmior Independent Director

Dipesh Shah 1s the Senior Independent Director [ SID }
Dipesh is available for discussions with other
Non-Executive Directors who may have concerns which
they believe have not been properly considered by the
Board as a2 whole He glso acts as an alternative point of
contact for the Executive Directors, if required, in
addition to the normal channels of the Charrman and
Chief Executive Officer

A key responsibitity of the SID s to ensure he is availabte
to shareholders tf they have concerns that have not been
resolved by contact through the normal channels of
Chatrman, Chief Executive Officer or other Executive
Directors, or where such contact 1s Inappropriate
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Key biographical Relevant Board
details experience responsibilities
Nigel Moore

» Chartered Accountant

» Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Hochschild Minung ple, The Vitec Group
plc, Ascent Resources plc

» Previously a London-hased
partner of Ernst & Young

+ Extensive financial experience
in international o and gas and
Mning groups

« FTSE-listed company
experience

» Charrman of the Board (since 13 July
2012)

» Charrman of the Nomination
Commuttee

« Merber of Audit Committee [until
17 January 2013]

s Member of the Remuneration
Committee

+ Leadership of the Board ensuring
cohesion between the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors

Dr Paul Davies

+ Civit engineer, PhD in Structural
Mechanics

« Co-founder of the JP Kenny Group of
Companies [forerunner of JKX Oil &
Gas plc]

* Board member since 1998

+ Extensive experience of
business in the former Soviat
Union

* Oil and gas engineering,
exploration and production
projects

+» Cheef Executive Officer

* Stewardship of the Group and its
business

+ Developing an zppropriate business
strategy for Board approva!

» Leadershup to the executive team and
subsidiary directors

* Investor relations

Cynthia Dubin

* Investment banker

» Co-founder and Chief Financial Qfficer
of Canamens Energy Ltd

» Finance Director for EMEA at Edison
Mission Energy

« Significant project finance and
banking experience

= Finance Director

+ Financral management of the Group

* Relatianships with the Group s bankers

= Risk Management, IT, Facilities and
Procurement

Peter Dixon

* 15 years working in geophysical roles
within Schlumberger

* Jotned JKX in 1995 as Asset Manager
far Ukraine

» General Director of Poltava Petroleum
Company for 3 years

« Board member since 2007

« Sigruficant experience in the
upstream ol and gas industry
in the former Soviet Unton

» In-depth knowledge of warking
n Ukraine and Russia

¢ Commercial Director
» Trading of oil, gas and condensate

Martin Miller

« Geologist, Chartered Engineer
* Semor postions with Mobil and BP
= Joned JKX tn 1994 as Chief Geologist

+ 40 years of experience working
in the oil and gas industry

» Technical Director
e Subsurface and technical teams

Dipesh Shah, OBE

o Farmer Chief Executive of several
businesses in BP

» Chief Executive af the UK Atomic
Energy Authority

= Non-Executive Director at Thames
Water Utilities and Chairman of Viridian
Group ple

* Non-Executive Director of Canaccord
Financial Inc

» Qver 30 years of experience
working in the oil and gas
sector

« Significant FTSE-listed
campany experience

« Senior independent Director

» Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee

« Member of the Audit Commutiee
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Key biegraphical
detals

Relevant
experience

Board
responsibilities

Lord Cxford

* Joined the Foreign Office in 1980
* Counseltor at the Britrsh Embassy tin
Kiev from 1992 1o 1997

 Unrivalled knowledge and
expertence of dong busimess in
Ukraine

« FTSE-listed carnpany
axperience

* Non-Executive Director
* Member of the Nommations
Committee

Alastair Ferguson

« Former President of New Gas Prgjects,
Upstream, TNK-BP

+ Former Executive Vice-President of
Gas & Power with TNK-BP

« Senror positions with BP

* 30 years of experience in the ol
and gas sector

» Extensive expertence of the gas
and pawer business tn Russia
and Ukrane

* Non-Executive Drrector
« Member of the Audit Committee

Richard Murray

+ Chartered Accountant
« Audit partner at Ernst & Young with
more than 35 years of service

» Advisor to major (nternational
COompanies on varous
carperate finance activities

* Nan-Executive Director [appainted
1 January 2013)
+ Chairman of the Audit Committee

[appointed 17 January 2013)
+ Member of the Remuneration
Committee

Diversity
The Board comprises eight men (89%} and one woman
[11%)

The Board supports the longer term aspirations of Lord
Davies s report regarding gender diversity on
appomntment of directors to boards Gender is only one
aspect of diversity, 2nd there are many other altributes
and experence that can improve the board s ability to
act effectively

Our policy 15 to search for the highest quality people
with the most appropriate experience for the
requirements of the business be they men or women

Board evaluation
The effectwveness of the Beard 15 vital to our continuing
success

An evaluation of the full Board and Chairman was
carried out during 2011 by Michael Kayser, the Interim
Director of Finance at the end of his tenure, and
overseen by Nigel Moore Following a number of
changes to Board responsibitities during the year and
the appointment of Richard Murray on 1 January 2013
the Board will consider the reievance of an externally
facilitated evaluation during 2013

Evaluation of the performance of Directors, the Board
and its committees 1s undertaken as follows

+ the Executive Directors are evaluated by the Non-
Executive Directors in informal session

+ the Chairman s evaluated by the other Non-Executive
Directors, led by the Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director, taking into account the views of
the Executive Directors

« the Committees are evaluated by the Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director along with the
Chief Executive, taking into account the views of the
other Executive Directors

« the Non-Executive Directors excluding the Chairman,
are evaluated by the Chawrman and Chief Executive
taking into account the views of the other Executive
Birectors and

+ the Board as a whole evaluatesits own performance
by consolidating and discussing the reviews sel out
above

Board activities

Board's work during 2012

Completing, commussioning and the ramp-up of
production at our Russian gas plant took up a
considerable ameount of the Board s ime during 2012,
as would be expected given the sirategic imporiance of
this major project




87 Understanding JKX 1 Cperational review 44
Strategic review 17 Corporate Social Responsibihity &4

Financial and risk review 28 Governance 78

Financial statements 108

In additron the most efficient and appropriate capital
structure of the group was considered at length in light
of the cash impact of the strategic move Lo diversify into
new assets in Russia whitst continuing to invest in
capital intensive prejects in Ukraine This resulted in
the successful completion of the $40m convertible hond
in February

Other matters of particular focus were

+ Operational and finan¢ial perfermance reviews, with
particular focus on productron performance and
expenditure at our Russian gas plant

« Group financing strategies and capital siruciure

» Corporate policy nisk management and compliance
« New growth opportunities

Attendance at meetings

The number of reetings of the Board and its

committees during 2012 and rndividual attendance by
director I1s shown below

Board Audit Remuneration Namination
Number of meetings 8 5 5 1
Nigel Moore 8/8 5/5 5/5 171
Or Paul Davies 8/8 - - -
Cynihia Dubin 7/8 - - -
Martin Miller 8/8 - - -
Peter Dixon 8/8 - - -
Lord Oxford 4/8 - - 1/1
Dipesh Shah DBE 7/8 5/5 5/5 -
Alastair Ferguson 6/8 5/5 - -
Sir lan Prosser 2/3 - if4 -

Audit Committee Report

Richard Murray fas Chairman), Dipesh Shah, Alastair Ferguson

Role

* Monitors adequacy of the Group s internal control,
risk management and financial reporting processes

» Reviews the Group s accounting policies

Monitors the integrity of the ftnancial statements of
the Group and any sigmificant inancial reporting
judgements

-

Recommends appointment of the external auditors
to the Board and annually assesses their
independence, objectiily, effectveness,
remuneraticn and terms of engagement

Reviews adherence to, and rebiabdity of, internal and
external audit plans

-

Reviews the interim and final financial statements
and results press announcements

*

The Audit Commitiee Terms of Reference can be
accessed via our corporate website [www kx co uk]

Activities during 2012

In addition to regular topics, the committee engaged
in addittenal rmatters including

o structure of and skills within our Russian Finance
Department

+ appointment of a Group Internat Audit Manager
« appointment of an International Internal Audst firm

« smprovements to our Change Management Policy

the effects of foreign exchange devaluation/
appreciation

» Bribery Act compliance matlers

+ review of asset carrying values and the Annual
Report
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Membership and process

During 2012, the Audit Committee was chaired by Nigel
Moore, who as a former audit partner with Ernst &
Young LLP possesses relevant financtal experience
Nigel also chairs the Audit Committee of three other UK
listed companies, and maintains a regular pattern of
attendance at relevant seminars and courses

Richard Murray now chairs the Audit Commuttee
following his appointment to the Board in January 2013
Richard recently retired from Ernst & Young where he
has been an audit partner since 1984

The Board 1s satisfied that the membership of the
Commitiee meets the requirement for recent and
relevant financial expernience The Cornpany Secretary
acts as Secretary lo the Commities

The Audit Committee met five times during the year
(2011 four)

Attendance at meetings

The meetings are, by invitation, attended by the
Chairman the Chief Executive Officer, the Finance
Birector, the Head of Compliance and representatives
from the external auditors Other directors are

invited to attend the meetings frem time to time
when appropriate

The Chairman maintains contact with those other
attendees throughout the year Twice during the year,
external auditors were given an opportunity to meet
with the Committee members in private to raise any
Issues

Internal Audit

Following the growth in the size and geographic spread
of the Group s operations the Audit Commuttee has
engaged KPMG to assist with the implementation of a
Group internal audit function The assessment of our
processes and controls 1s underway which will prioritise
their work programme

Nomination Committee Report
Niget Moore (as Chairman), Lord Oxford

Role

+ Reviews the structure, size, skills and composilion
of the Company Board and the Boards of companies
owned by JKX Oil & Gas plc

+ Considers surtable nominations for appointmentis to
the Boards and succession planning

» Makes appropriate recommendations based on
qualifications and experence

We expect to appoint a permanent internal Audit
Manager in the coming weeks to support KPMG in therr
work which will strengthen the finance and operational
functions across the Group

External audit

The Audit Cemmuittee maintains an objective and
professional relationship with the Company s audtitors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who have been auditors
to the Group since 2006, and meets in private session
with them on a periodic basis

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were reappointed as the
Company s auditors in 2011 following a competitive
tender process Any decision to open the external audit
to tender 15 taken on the recommendation of the Audit
Commitiee based on the results of the performance
review

From time to time, the auditor 1s requested to perform
non-audit engagements for the Group In such
instances the centinued objectivity and iIndependence of
the auditors 1n their capacity of auditor 1s an objective of
the Group Full disclosure of the non-audit fees patd to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP during the year is made
in note 21 to the financial statements

Having reviewed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
performance during the year and satisfied itself of their
continuing independence and objectvity within the
context of applicable regulatory requirements and
professional standards, the Cornmitiee has invited the
Board to recommend the reappomntment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditor at the
forthcorming AGM and a resolution to that effect will
appear in the notice of the AGM

Activities during 2012

In addition to regular topics the committee engaged
in additional matters including

= the appointment of an international executive
search firm to assist with the identification of &
Non-Executive Director

+ the appointment of Richard Murray from 1 January
2013
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Membership and process

The Nemsnation Committee comprises two Non-
Executive Directors and 1s chaired by Nigel Moore
The Commuttee meets at least once a year and more
frequently If required

The Nomination Committee met once during 2012
(2011 three)

Richard Murray was dentified as a potentiat candidate
for the role of Non-Executive Director and Chairman of
the Audit Commuttee by an externat advisory firm and
subsequently recommended to the Board by the
Nermination Committee on the basts of his significant
international business expertence 1n financial markets
gained over 35 years at Ernst & Young LLP

The whole Board subsequently discussed the
recommendation before Richard s appointment was
confirmed

The Chairman ensures that any new Directors are
provided with a full inductien on jommng the Board The
letters of appomntment of each Non-Executive Director
are available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company

Succession Planning

During the latter part of the year, the Nomination
Comrmuttee began its consideration of the Company s
succession planning methodology for Executive
Directors and sentor management This wilt continue to
be a focus for the Nemination Commitiee during the
early part of 2012 with the expectation that development
plans wilt be considered by the Board during the second
quarter for implementation thereafter

Remuneration Committee

Detalls of the work of each of the Remuneration
Committee 1s given in the Remuneration report on
pages 92 to 107

Compliance

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
The Board believes the Company has been in futl
compliance with the provisions set out In the UK
Corporate Governance Code, which was updated in
September 2012 with the followrng munor exception

B 2 3 The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive
Directors are set out In their service cantracts, which
for Nigel Moore 1s dated 12 July 2007 for Lord Oxford 1s
dated 1 January 2002, for Dipesh Shah s dated 1 June
2008 for Alastair Ferguson is dated 1 November 2011
and for Richard Murray Is dated 1 January 2013 and
includes a termination notice of three months by either
party However, the service contracts are for an
indefinite term, not a fimite term subject to re-etection
on an as required basis The Board continues to believe

this I1s approepriate given the company size, Non-
Executive skill set and evatuation of performance and
independence on an ongoing basis with regards io
MNon-Executives The Company continues to belreve the
unspecified term is reasonable

In considering that the Company s, other than as noted
above, in full compliance the Board notes that
exctuding the Chairman, independent Non-Executive
Directors comprise 50% of the Board as the Board
constders that the four other Non-Executive Directors |
are wholly independent

The Executive Directors have undertaken a review of the
independence of each of the Non-Executive Directors
and Chairman The review agdressed the matters
highlighted at Section B 1 1 of the Code, which could
appear to affect a Director s judgment In undertaking
the review, one specific matter addressed was that Lord
Oxford has served on the Board for more than nine
years Following the review, the Executive Directors do
not consider that this matter in any way influences the
independent judgment of Lord Oxford Accordingly the
Executive Directors believe each of the Non-Executve
Directors and Chairman to be independent in
accordance with Section B 1 1 of the Code both during
the period under review and subsequently

In addition the Board supports the continued
appointment of Lord Oxford as a Non-Executive Director
because of his unrivalled knowledge and experience of
doing business in Ukraine

Internal control and risk management

The Board is responsible for identifying and evaluating
the major business risks faced by the Company and for
determining and monitoring the appropriate course of
action to manage these risks The Audit Committee
monitors the integrity of the financiat statements and
related announcemenis reviews the Companys
internal control processes and risk management
systems and reporis its conclusions to the Board

The Board regularly conducts reviews, and has
reviewed, for the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the 2012 Annual Report, the effectiveness of
the Company s systems of internal control and risk
management

It has concluded that the Company s procedures
policies and systems are appropriate and sustable to
enable the Board to safeguard shareholders investment
and the Company s assets, and comply with Turnbull
Buidance

The Risk Commuttee, which comprises the Finance
Director and sentor management assists the Board in
discharging their responsibility te review on an ongaing
basis the risks potentially facing the Group, their
potential impact the strategies available to mit:gate
those nsks and the costs of such mitigation
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The Chairman of the Risk Commitiee reports to the
Audit Committee and the Board at retevant meetings on
matters it has reviewed and matenal changes to the
Group s risk environment, in addition to making
recomnmendations when appropriate

The Risk Committee met twice in 2012 and again in
February 2013 The principal nisks identified by the
Group are set out on pages 34 10 43

Budgetary process

Each year the Board reviews and approves the Group s
annual budget with key risk areas identthed The
preparation of the annual Group budget 15 a multi-stage
comprehensive process led by the Finance Director who
works closely with local finance directors for operating
subsidiaries in Russia and Ukraine and other senior
management with specific responsibilities for our
Hungarian, Slovakian and other operations

Performance 1s monitored through the monthly
reporting to the Board of vaniances from the budget
Relevant action 1s taken by the Board throughout the
year based on updated forecasts which are prepared
using current information on the key risk areas and
sensifivities

Investment appraisal

For each capital intensive project there 1s a rgorous
project analysis and risk and return appraisal
complieted using technical financial, commercial, and
operational specialists across the Group

We have a sub-surface technical team in cur London
Head Office to montitor, assess, appraise and oversee all
on-gotng Group projects and potential opportunities
Bringing this expertise in-house has maproved our
ability to identify the potential risks, rewards and value
10 new capital intensive opportunities and to quckly and
efficiently utilise the available resources to maximise
returns from our existing portfolio of oil and gas assets

Capital investment 1s regulated by the budgetary
process, our autemated application for expenditure
[AFE) system and pre-defined auiherisation levels

For expenditure beyond specified levels, detailed written
proposals are submitted to the Board Using our AFE
system Group capital expenditures are reviewed weekly
on a project-by-project basis by the Finance Director
and overruns actual or foreseen, are investigated

Whistleblowing

The Board reviews the arrangemeants by which
employees can raise any concerns they may have about
workplace fraud or mismanagement with local
management on a confidential basis Whistleblowing
incidents are taken very seriousty by the Board

Complaints are investigated in the first instance and a
decision taken about further steps Feedback s
provided to the person making the complaint

As part of the Board s commitment to support our
employees in the work place, we have a confidentiat
process for reporting Concerns at Work Thisis a
confidential service for reporting delicate matters that
sometimes arise in the work place

In addition this service forms parl of the Company s
commiiment to comply with best practice under the UK
Bribery Act As disclosed in our Anti-Bribery and
Corruption policy, atl indwiduals who work on behalf of
the Group have a responsibility to help detect prevent
and report instances not only of bribery but also of any
other suspicious activity or wrongdoing

The Board 1s absolutely comnmmtted to ensuring that att
employees have a safe, reliable, and confidential way of
reporting any suspicious actvity

Communication with shareholders
Comrmunication with shareholders s a tugh priority for
the Board

A number of formal commumcation channels are used
to account to shareholders for the performance of the
Group which include the Annual Report, AGMs and
periedic reports to the London Stock Exchange

Presentations given at appropriate intervals to
representatives of the investor community are available
to all sharehelders to downtoad from the Group s
website [www kx co uk] Less formal processes include
contacts with instituttonal shareholders for which the
Board 33 a whole lakes responsibility

Extensive information about the Group s activities 1s
provided In the Annual Report and the Half-yearly
Report which are provided to shareholders

The Board 1s keen t¢ ensure that it maintains an open
relationship with the Group s major shareholders and
communicate directly with them, offering the
opportunity to meet in order that their views on the
Group can be understood or any other points that they
might wish to raise

Enguiries irom individuals on matters relating to thew
shareholding and the business of the Group are
welcormned and are dealt with i an informative and
timely manner Shareholders are encouraged 1o altend
the Annual General Meeting to discuss the progress of
the Group

Conflicts of interest
The Company complies with the provisions on conflicts
of interest in the Compames Act 2006
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The Company has in place procedures far the disclosure
and review of any conilicts or potential conflicts, of
interest which the Directors may have and for the
authorisation of such conflicting matters by the Board
In deciding whether to authorise a conflict or potentrat
conflict the Directors must have regard to their general
duttes under the Companies Acl 2006 The procedure
operates to ensure the disclosure of conflicts and for
the consideration and If appropriate, the authorisation
of them by non-conflicted Birectors

The authorisation of a conflict matter, and the terms of
authorisation, may be reviewed at any ime by the
Board The Nomination Comrmuittee supports the Board
in this process, bath by reviewing reguests from
Directors for authorisations of situations of actual or
potential conflict and making recemmendations to the
Board and by reviewing any situations of actual or
potential conflict that have been previously authorised
by the Board, and making recommendations regarding
whether the authorisation remains appropriate

Going concern

The Board closely monitors and manages its liquidity
risk Cash flow forecasts are regularly produced and
sensitivities run for different scenarios including, but
not Limited 10, changes in commodity prices, different
production and tax rates n relation to the Group s
producing assets and delays to development projects

The Directors have reviewed the Group s forecast cash
flows for the next twelve months and through to the end
of 2014 Capital and operating costs are based on
approved budgels and tatest forecasts in the case of
2013 and current development plans in the case of 2014

In addition the Directors have made engtiries into and
considered the Ukraiman and Russian business
environments and future expectations regarding
country and currency risks that the Group may
encounter

Having considered the sensitivities and potential
outcomes relating to these country and currency risks
the Group s ability to change the iming and scale of its
discretionary capital expenditure the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company and Group
have adequate resources to centinue for the foreseeable
future The going concern basis for the financial
statements has therefore continued to be adopted

Annual Report

The Board considers that the annual report and
financial statements, taken as a whole i1s fair, balanced
and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the company s
performance, business model and stralegy

g

On behalf of the Board
Nigel Moore
Chairman

8 Apni 2013
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Introduction

This report sets out the details of the remuneration
policy for the Company s directors, describes its
imptementation and discloses {he amounts paid in
2012

The repori meets statutory requirements in parlicular
the relevant requiations on directors remuneration
reports pursuant to the Companies Act 2006, the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups [Accounts
and Reports} Regulations 2098, provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code {the Code }and the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority

Relevant sections of this report have been audited In
accordance with the Companies Act requirements For
this reason the repert 1s divided into two parts

* the first, which 1s not audited, sets out the role of the
Remuneration Commuttee, the Company s executive
reward policy and the link between this policy and the
business strategy,

Part 1 Unaudited information

Remuneration Committee
The Committee met five imes during the year
(2011 two)

Membershtp and process

The Remuneration Commuttee currently comprises
three independent Non-Executive Directors and is
chaired by Dipesh Shah [Senior Independent Director]

Richard Murray was appointed to the Remuneration
Committee on 17 January 2013

The Committee meets at least twice a year, to assist the
Board i deterrmiming the remuneration arrangements
and coniracts of the Directers and senior employees

The Remuneration Commitiee has reviewed the Code,
specifically Section D that addresses the level, make up
and procedural aspects of remuneration The
Remuneration Commuittee considers that it complies
with alt the provisions and practices identified

Attendance at meetings
The meeting attendance record 15 set out in the
Corporate Governance report on page 87 Meetings are

« the second part, which has been audited in
accordance with the Regulations provides details of
Directors emoluments share incentives and other
performance-related awards and pension
arrangements

Inadation In prepaning this report, the Commitiee has
paid regard to the proposed reporting requirements
announced by the UK Department for Business
Innovation and Skilts [ BIS ) that will come into force
from next year s report and accounts The Committee
has decided to adopt some of the new requiremenis
where practical to do so whilst rematning comphant
with the current Regulations It 1sthe Committee s
intention to provide a fully restructured report next year,
cnce the details of the BIS requirements are finalised

attended by the Chief Executive except when his own
remuneration I1s being discussed No Director piays a
part in any discussion regarding his own remuneration

None of the Committee has any personal financial
interest except as a shareholder |as detailed on page
81], which, given the level of holdings, the Board
accepts does not impair mndependence, and no conflicts
of interests arise from cross-directorships or day-to-
day involvement i running the Group

Advisers

The Commitiee retains Kepter Associates | Kepler | as
tis independent executive remuneration advisers
Kepler provides no other services to the Group Kepler
1S 3 signatory to the Remuneration Consultants Group
Code of Conduct

During the year, Mercer Limited provided information
on remuneration levels at comparator oil and gas
companies Mercer provides no other services {o the
Group

Table 1 Independent Non-Executive Directors who served on the Remuneration Committee during 2012

Member From To
Dipesh Shah OBE [Chairman) t June 2008 to date
Nigel Moore 26 June 2007 lo date

Sir lan Prosser

1 March 201t 16 July 2012




93 Understanding JKX 1 Operationat review 44
Strategic review 17 Corporate Sccial Responsibility b4
Financial and risk review 28 Governance 78
Financial statements 108
Remuneration Committee members
Dipesh Shah OBE (as Chairman), Nigel Moore, Richard Murray
Role Activities during 2012

« Establishes the overatl principles of remuneration
for Directors of all Group companies

* Determines the remuneration of Executive Directors
and Sentor Management, communicates this to the
stakeholders in the annual report

* Recommends the participation in, and operation of,
the Company s long-term incentwe plans

» The tull terms of reference are available from the
Company Secretary

Remuneration policy

The Company aims to ensure that total remuneration i1s
set at an appropriate levet relative to peer group
comparator companies The comparator companies are
UK-based oil and gas companies which are primarily
guoted on the London Stock Exchange or AlM

The remuneration for Executive Directors and senior
management s made up of base salary benefits
lincluding non-contributory health insurance life
assurance (ncome protection] annual bonus long-
term incentives and pension contributions

The objectives of the remuneration policy are to

« enable the Company to recruit, retain and motivate
indwiduals with the skills, capabibities and experience
to achieve ts stated objectives,

« strengthen teamwork by enabling all employees to
share in the success of the business and

= ensure alignment of Executive, senior management
and shareholder interests

The core principles of the remuneration policy are to

+ pay an appropriate level of total remuneration relative
to peer group companies,

+ ensure that there Is an appropriate ink between
performance and reward,

In addition to regular topics, the Committee engaged
in specific matters including

* Review and approval of payments to be made under
the 2011 Annual Bonus Scheme

¢ Approval of executive salary levels for 2012

 Confirmation of lapse of share option awards made
in 2008 due to failure to achieve vesting criteria in
2012

+ Review and approvat of performance targets for the
2012 Annual Bonus Scheme

+ Review and approval of the allocation of, and
performance conditions applicable to, performance
shares and share option awards made in 2012, and

» Review the application of current remuneration
policies and examining whether these need to be
amended in bight of best practice guidelines and
market cirrcumstances

» award annual bonuses which are linked to the delivery
of the annuat Strategic Plan targets including the
achievemenl of strategic cbjectives and personal
performance, and

+ ensure that long-term incentives are linked to Total
Shareholder Return (TSR] and to the delivery of
Strategic Plan targets including the achievement of
strategtc objectives

The phulosophy of the Committee 1s that the targets
established for each element of the remuneration
should be quantified wherever practicable

Table 2 fon pages %4 and 95) summarises the
Company s remuneration policy Certain elements of
the remuneration policy for 2013 are currently under
review by the Remuneration Commiitee and the
Committee Chairman will write to shareholders if any
changes are proposed
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Table 2 Remuneration policy 2012

Fixed etements

Element/purpose Operatian
and link to strategy

Opportunity

Performance measures

Salary

To attract and retain
tatent by ensuring
base salaries reflect
individual
performance and
market factors

Base salaries are reviewed
annually on 1 January, with
reference to the indwviduals
role, experience and
performance, salary levels at
relevant UK sector

comparators, and the range of

salary increases applying
across the Group

Base salary increases are
applied in line with the
outcome of the review

Business and indvidual
performance are
considerations in setting base
salary

Pension

To provde
competitive
retirement benefits

The Company makes a
contribution to the pension
scheme of the individual s
choice

Latest contribution levels are
set out on page 97

Not performance related

Benefits
To provide
cormpetitive benefits

Benefits include Life
assurance, Income protection
and private medical cover

Benefits values vary by role
and are reviewed periodically
to market circumstances

Not performance related

Variable elements

Annual bonus

To incentivise the
achievement of
short-term financial
and strategic
objectives

Paid in cash, and at the
discretion of the Commuttee,
In deferred shares for
Executive Directors

Bonuses range from 0% up
to

- 100% of satary for Paul
Davies

- 85% of salary for Cynthia
Dubin

- 75% of salary for Peter
Dixon and Martin Miller

~ between 30% and 60% of
salary for senior managers

Target bonus 1s 40% of
maximum

Perfarmance measures and
their respective weightings
vary each year depending on
strategic priorities

At the end of the year, the
Rernuneration Commitiee
determines the extent to which
these have heen achieved The
Remuneration Committee has
the ability to exercise
discretion to adjust for factors
outside management controt

Measures used for the 2012
annual bonus are set out on
page 99
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Element/purpose
and link to strategy

Variable elements

Dpportunity

Performance measures

Discretionary Share
Option Scheme

[ DS0S’)

To mcentivise
superior long-term
financial and share
price performance

The Remuneration Committee
has the ability to grant awards
of market-value options
annuatly to Executive
Directors and senior
managers, conditional on
Group performance over 3
years

The DSOS provides for
annual awards up to an
aggregate Umit of 100% of
salary in normat
circumstances This limit
may be exceeded in
exceptional circumstances,
e g recruttment, up to an
exceptional Limit of 200% of
salary

Awards policy for 2012

- 100% of salary for Paul
Davies

- 100% of salary for Cynthra
Oubin

- 80% of salary for Peter
Dixon and Martin Milter

- between 30% and 70% of
salary tor semor managers

The vesting of awards 15
usually subject to

+ continued employment

» the Company s performance
over a 3-year performance
period

The performance measures
applied to DSOS awards are
reviewed from time to ime to
ensure they remain
appropnate and aligned with
shareholder interests

Measures used for the 2012
DS0S award are set out on
page 98

Performance Share
Plan {'PSP’}

To Incentivise
superior longer term
returns to
shareholders
relative to peers

The Remuneration Committee
has the ability to grant awards
of nil-cost aptions annually to
Executive Directors,
conditional on Group
performance over 3 years

The award levels and
performantce conditions on
which vesting depends are
reviewed from time to bme to
ensure they remain
apprepriate

The PSP provides for annual
awards up to an aggregate
lirit of 100% of salary in
normal circumstances This
it may be exceeded in
exceptional circumstances,
e g recruitment, up to an
exceptional imit of 200% of
salary

Awards policy for 2012

- 100% of salary for Paul
Davies

- 100% of salary for Cynthia
Dubin,

- B0% of satary for Peter
Dixon and Martin Miller

The vesting of awards I1s
usually subject to

The performance measures
applied to PSP awards are
reviewed from time to time ta
ensure they remain
appropriate and aligned with
shareholder interests
Measures used for the 2012
PSP award are set out on
page 100

Share retention
policy

To support alignment
with shareholder
nterests, Executive
Directors will be
required to build and
hold a sigrificant
shareholding over
time

Expressed as a percentage of
salary

Applicable to Executive
Directors only

Current shareholding
guidelines are detailed on
page 102

Not performance related
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Figure 3 Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors (%)
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Rernuneration scenarios for Executive Directors
Figure 3 above shows how the compositton of each
Executwve Director s remuneration package varies at
different levels of performance under the policy set out
in Table 2 on pages ?4 and 95

Executive Directors remuneration

Single figure of total remuneration for Executive
Directors

The total remuneration for Executive Directors in 2012
was as shown in Table 4 on page 97

L
An Execuiive Director s basic salary and the other fixed
elernents of pay are determined by the Committee at
the beginning of each year The individual salaries and
benefits of Executive Directors are reviewed and

Maximum annual bonus

Perfarmance warrants full vesting [100%)

adjusted taking into account indmdual performance and
market factors, with reference to independent and
objective research that provides up-to-date information
on a comparator group of UK companies operating mn
the independent oil and gas sector

Executive Directors base salaries and benefits are
reviewed each year with any changes taking effect from
1 January At the Commiitee meeting on 17 January
2013, the Committee decided to award the basic salary
increases shown in Table 5 on page 97

The average salary increase for employees was 4 0%

Benefits provided to Executive Directors includes Life
assurance, which 1s also provided for senior managers,
for a sum assured of four times base salary ncome
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Table 4 Executive Directors remuneration 2012
Or Paul Davies Cynthea Dubin Martin Miller Peter Dixon
Notes (£ 000) | 004} [£ oo0) [£ 0o0)
1 Salary 398 280 212 212
Z  Pension contribution 60 42 27 32
3 Benefits 6 3 2 3
4 Annual bonus 133 80 53 53
5  Deferred 2011 Annuat bonus 23 - ¢ 9
6 DSOS - - - -
7 PSP - - - -
Total remuneration 620 405 303 309

1) Salary amount earned for the year
2] Benefits the taxable value ot benefits recewved en the year

3) Pension annual contribution by the Group to directars pension plans or cash tn liew
4) Annual Bonus this is the totzl cash bonus earned on performance during the year
5] The deferred 2011 annuat bonus which vested based on performance 1o 31 Decenber 2017 valued based an the share price on 31 March 2013

4) DSOS nec awards vested on performance to 31 December 2092
7) PSP nc awards vested on performance to 31 December 2012

Table § Executive Directors base salaries

2012 saltary 2013 salary % Iincrease
Dr Paul Davies £398.000 €409,000 2 8%
Cynthia Dubin £280,000 €£288,000 2 9%
Martin Miller £212 000 £218,000 2 8%
Peter Dixon £212,000 £218,000 2 8%

prolection [% base salary deferred for 13 weeks), and
private medical cover [PPP private medicat cover 15
offered to all Company employees and provides medical
cover for them and thetr dependents, on a non-
contributory basis)

Pension

The Company makes a contribution equivalent to 15%
of basic salary to the pension scheme of the individual s
choice

At their option Executive Directors may either have
centributions of the same amounts made to their
personal pension schemes or cash in liew of pension at
the stated rate and subject to normal statutory
deductions, or a combination of pansion contributions
up to £50,000 per annum with the remainder as cash in
tieu of penston

v

Annual Bonus Scheme

The Annuat Bonus Scheme applies to Executive
Directors and certain senior management including
senior staff in Poltava Petroleum Company [ PPC ] and
Yuzhgazenergie | YGE )

Bonuses are based on both Group and indidual
performances against objectives determined by the
Commuttee at the beginning of the year and are
designed to reward shori-term performance

The scheme 1s discrelionary and annual awards are
not pensionable

The perfermance conditions for each financral year
which are derwed from the Company s Annual Budget
and Strategic Plan which have been approved by

the Board

In order to encourage leamwork across the Group the
welighting apptied to each performance condition was
identical for each Executive Director and for semor
management




98

Remuneration report

JKX Oit & Gas plc Annual Report 2012

Annual bonus scheme performance conditions

and achievements 2012

The Annual Bonus Scheme performance conditions and
Achievernents for 2012 were as shown in Table 6 on
page 99

To earn the maximum level of bonus requires the
maximum 1o be met or exceeded for each performance
measure and afl of the strategic objectives to be met

The Remuneration Commuttee considers these
performance measures as the key drivers and
indicators of both short and long-term performance
and value creation

1-year relative TSR s included in the Annual Bonus
Scherne as the Committee believes this measure
effectively isolates management performance from
short-term fluctuations in the oil and gas prices, and
from other market influences

Target and Maxaimum bonus opportunities

and achievements

Target and maximum bonus opportunities , and those
achieved forin 2012 were as shown in Table 7 on
page 9%

2012 Annual Bonus Payments

The 2012 results above and indmduat achievement
against stralegic obsectives resulted in cash bonus
payments of between 25 1% and 33 4% oi basic salary
for Executive Directors Other senior management
received bonus payments of between 6 8% and 17 4%
of basic salary

Annual bonus payments are in respect of the 2012
Annual Bonus Awards and were paid partly in January
2013 with the remainder being in February 2013

2011 Annual Bonus for Executive Directors

At the request of the Remuneration Commuittee the
Executive Directors agreed to defer half of the 2011
Bonus earned into Performance Share Options These
nil-cost options were 1ssued as being exercisable from
31 March 2013 and were subject to claw back n the
event that certain performance conditions retating to
the Koshekhablskoye gas freld were not satisfied These
performance conditions were met In part resulting in
one third of the ml-cost options granted becoming
exercisable on 31 March 2013 The remaining two-thirds
of the nii-cost options lapsed

Full detaits of the Directors interests in share options
are detaited on page 107

Annual Bonus Scheme for 2013

For 2013 the Annual Bonus Scheme will operate on a
similar basis to 2012 with the Committee set stretching
financial, strategic and HSE objectives and relative
TSR targets

Long-term incentive arrangements
The Company currently operates two long-term
incentive plans

= the 2010 Discrationary Share Option Scheme | DSOS )
and

« the 2010 Performance Share Plan [ PSP )

both of which were approved by shareholders at the
2010 Annual General Meeting

The PSP provides nit-cost options for Executive
Directors and the DSOS provides market value options
for Executive Directors and senior management

In the aggregate the market value of shares that may
be granted in any financial year under the DSQS and the
PSP together cannot exceed 300% of basic salary for
any Executive

2010 Discretionary Share Option Scheme ['DS0S’)

The normal maximum grant of Options in any financial
year under the DS0S 15 100% of basic salary In
exceptionzl circumstances the Committee has the
discretion to grant options with a face value of up to
200% of basic salary To date, awards have not exceeded
100% of salary

Maximum award epportumities in 2012 under the DSOS
was 100% of base szlary for Paul Bavies and Cynthia
Dubin and 80% of base salary for Martin Miller and
Peter Dixon

For 2012 awards under the DSQS, to reflect the
reduciion i targets for EPS growth [see belowl], the
Remuneration Committee scaled back the option
grants in June by ¢ 40% for each Executive Director,
Paul Davies and Cynihia Dubin receved a grant of
options of ¢ 0% of salary, [normally 100%)} and Peter
Dixon and Martin Miller received grants of 30% of salary
tnormally 80%]}

Vesting and perfermance conditions

Options generally vest at the end of a 3-year
performance pertod, subject te achievemnent of 3-year
Earnings per Share [ EPS ) growth targets The
Committee considers EPS to be an appropriate
measure, since it 1s the primary internat benchmark of
long-term financial performance and promotes
alignment between management and the Company s
shareholders

For the purposes of the DSOS EPS will be adjusted for
any changes in tax rates, including charges arising from
the new Ukrainian tax code Executives will therefore
not be rewarded {or penalisedj for subsequeni
reductions [or increases) in these lax rates which the
Remuneration Commuiltee considers are outside of
their control
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Table & Annual bonus scheme performance conditions and achievements 2012

Element Weighting 2012 Pearformance
to overall measures
honus
Financral 40% Pre-Tax Profit
targets

Return on Average Capital
Employed

Mirmmum rotling cash

2012 Performance
targets

Targets established
agatnst each measure with
a sliding scate between
threshold and maximum

Below minimum 25%
threshold

Below minimum
threshold

Above minimum

resources threshold for most
of the year, below
for the rest
Strategic 30% Increases in produchan Based on quantifiable Below mimimum 20 9%
Plan targets figures to Lmit subjectity  threshold

as far as possible

New reserves and
resources from existing
and new licences

Exceeded stretch
targets

Field development

Field development plan

Exceeded stretch

and funding mechanism target
for next Russian Phase
1-year 20% Average TSR and spot TSR No payment below a Belowmimmum 0%
relative TSR at start and end of the year  threshotd of performance threshold on both
measured relative to In line wath index TSR
» the FTSE250 Index Maximum bonus under
+ the FTSE Ali Share Ol & this element 1s earned If
Gas Producers Index the TSR outperformance is
10% above index
Bonus earned increases
on a straight-tine basis
between threshold and
Maximum
Health 10% Lost Time Injury Frequency  LTIF=03 Exceeded stretch 10%
and Safety Rate [ LTIF } targets
targets
All Injury Frequency Rate AIFR=05 Exceeded stretch

[AIFR)

targets

Total 100%

33 4%

Table 7 Target and maximum bonus epportunities and achrevements

2012 Achisvement % of
benus
earned

Dr Paul Davies Cynthia Duben Martin Milter Peter Dixon  Senier managers
Target (% of base salary} 40% 34% 30% 0% 12%-24%
Maximum |% of base salary) 100% 85% 75% 75% 30%-60%
Achieved |% of base salary) 33 4% 28 5% 251% 25 1% 8%-20%
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Figure 8 Vesting schedule for the DSOS

% of options vesting

Threshold Maximum

Jyear EPS growthp a

The performance targets lor the 2010 and 2011 cycles
required 3-year nominal EPS growth 0t 22 5% p & for
maximurn vesting with threshold vesting [25% of an
award] al 7 5% p a land on a straight-line basis in
between these points)

During 2012, the Commutlee reviewed the performance
targets that were set when the revised DS0S was put in
place in 2010 Whilst being very stretching these
targels were considered appropriate at the time
However, the circumstances facing the Company were
considered materially different in 2012 and, in the
opinion of the Remuneration Commuittee, these targets
were no longer consedered to be appropriate for the
2012 grants After careful consideration and having
reviewed a number of different reference paints, the
Remuneration Commitiee determined that for 2012
grants a performance range for EPS growth of 5% lo
10% per annum would be more realisttc and more
motvational for the executive management team, 25%
of the options would vest for EPS growth of 5% p a and
all of the options would vest for EPS growth of 10% p a
(and on a straight-line basis In between these points)

The performance targets are reviewad on an annual
basis at the start of each 3-year performance cycle to
ensure their continued appropriateness

The Committee has total discretion as to the application

of the Rules of the D505, and in the event of a change
of control the Comnutiee retains discretion to
deterrmnine the treatment of unvested unapproved
options

Figure 9 Vesting schedule for the PSP

% of shares vesting

Index Index +10% pa

JKX s Iyear TSR vs Index

50% based on FTSE 250 Index and 50% based
an FTSE All Share Qil & Gas Producers Index

2010 Performance Share Plan ['PSP’)

The nermal maximum award of nil-cost options tn any
inancial year under the PSP is 100% of & participant s
basic salary tn exceptional circumnstances the
Commuttee has the discretion to make awards of up to
200% of a participant s basic salary

To date, awards have not exceeded 100% of salary
Maximum award opportunities 1n 2012 were 100% of
salary for Paul Davies and Cynthia Dubin, and 80% of
salary for Peter Dixon and Martin Miller

Vesting and performance conditions

PSP awards vest based on 3-year TSR performance
relative to the FTSE 250 and FTSE All-Share Oil & Gas
Producers indices [with half of the award being
assessed against each index)

Each part of the award will be based on performance
retative to the retevant index with 25% vesting for
performance in line with the index Vesting would
increase on a straight-line basis between 25% and
100% for index out-performance of up to 10% p a
Historically, this has been broadly equivalent to upper
gquartile performance

The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to
award nit-cost options that vest in a sherter timeframe

TSR performance measurement

The Commuitee must be satishied that the recorded TSR
15 a genuine reflection of the underlying performance of
the Company over the performance period

The Commuttee considers the use of TSR to be
appropfiate since 1t 1s dependent on the Company s
relative long-term share price performance and
therefore provides streng alignment with the interests
of the Company s shareholders




101 Understanding JKX 1 Operational review 44
Strategic review 17 Corporate Social Responsibility b4

Financial and risk review 28 Governance 78

Financ:al statements 108

TSR perfermance 1s measured using percentage
out-performance rather than a ranking approach since
it 15 less sensilive to the TSR of individual comparators,
and uses a 12-month averaging period due to the
volatility of the Company s share price and the long-
terrn nature of the Cernpany s investments

Whilst noting market practice 1s typically to use a
shorter averaging period the Committee feel that
12-month averaging would give a {airer result for both
management and sharehotders

There 1s no retesting of performance targets

The Commiltee has total discretion as to the application
of the Rutes of the PSP, and in the event of a change of
control, the Committee retains discretion to determine
the trealment of unvested awards

Legacy Share Option Schemes

In 2001 the Company imptemented HM Revenue &
Customs [ HMRC ] Approved JKX Cil & Gas plc
Discretionary Share Option Scheme 2001 [Approved
Scheme] and the Unapproved JKX Ol & Gas
Discretionary Share Option Scheme 2001 (Unapproved
Schemel ftogether, the Share Option Schemes)

At the time of implementation in 2001, these schemes
reflected the best practice aspects recommended by
the ABI Guidelines Following the introduction of new
plans (in 2010, no further awards have been made under
the 2001 Share Option Schemes

None of the options granted in 2009 vesied 2009 was
the tast year during which opttons under these schemes
were granted

Vesting and performance conditions
The Committee has total discretion as to the application
of the Rules of the Share Option Schemes, and in the

event of a change of control, the Commutlee retains
discretion to determine the treatment of unvested
options

Options vest based on 3-year share price performance
both in absolute terms and relative to external
benchmarks Under these schemes, comparisen
against the FTSE Index in which the Company 1s a
censtituent at the time of the grant and against the
FTSE Ot & Gas Producers Index were considered

by the Committee to be the rmost appropriate

external benchmarks

For options granted between 2006 and 2009, the
number of options that vest and therefore can be
subsequently exercised 1s determined by two factors

[1] the actual increase in the Company s share price,
and

(2] a comparison of the actual increase in the
Company s share price to the hugher of the change in
the FTSE 250 and the FTSE Oil & Gas Producers Index

The performance conditions are summarised in
Table 10 below

The Company s share price and FTSE Index factors are
multiplied together and the resultant figure is applied to
the number of options granted to an indvidual to
determine the number of optionsthat vest

The structure was designed to introduce a sliding scale
as distinct from a spectfic indmwduat benchmark it
requires the Company s share price to doubte and for
this Increase to be In the top quartile of the growth In
the higher of the FTSE 250 and FTSE Oil & Gas
Producers Index for all of the options to vest

To encourage the retention of senior managers, the
Committee determined that an option holder would

Table 10 Summary of Share Option Scheme performance conditions {grants made 2006 to 2009)

Absolute share price performance

Share price factar

At exercise price or below

Between exercise price and 150% of exercise price
in excess of 150% and up to 200% of exercise price
In excess of 200% of exercise price

0
Upto05
D66

1

Relative share price perfoermance

FTSE 250 / Ol & Gas Producers Index Factor

in the lower quartile of the % growth in the FTSE Index
in the second quariile of the % growth m the FTSE Index
in the third quarttle of the % growth in the FTSE Index
In the top quartie of the % growth in the FTSE Index

025
es5
075
1
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Table 11 Executive Directors share ownership guidelines

Shareholding excluding

Value of shareholding

based on a share price Percentage of

Basic salary restricted shares of 77 5 pence' basic salary
Dr Paul Davies £398 000 3 632,272 £2.8150M 707%
Cynthia Dubin £280 000 40,000 £31 000 1%
Peter Dixon £212000 163,179 £126 464 60%
Martin Miller £212 000 190 000 £147 250 69%

1) 77 5 pence was the closing middle market price of an ordinary share of the Company on 31 Decernber 2012

be able to exercise up to 50% of vested options
immediatety following vesting and the remaining vested
options onty after a period of 12 months from vesting,
uniess otherwise determined by the Committee

Maximum share awards and dilution
In any ten year pertod, the number of Shares which may
be placed under Option, or 1ssued

* may not exceed five per cent of the Company s
ordinary share capital if 1ssued under the
discretionary employees share scheme and

* may not exceed ten per cent of the Companys
ordinary share capial if issued under the other
employees share schemes

Asat 31 December 2012 the maximum available shares
under the Company s 5% and 10% limits was 6 4 million
(2611 & 4 million) and 14 1 million {2011 14 1 miltien]
shares respectively, out of an 1ssued share capital of
172 1 million shares

Executive Directors share ownership guidelines
In 2010, the Committee intreduced executive share
ownership guidelines of 100% of basic salary for
Executive Directors which can be built up overa
reasonable period of time fram appeintiment No
specific value per share was designated for the
calculation

Unvested share awards including shares held in
connection to compulsory bonus deferrals are not taken
Into account In applying this test

Tabte 11 above shows the position at 31 December 2012
based en that day s ¢losing middle market price of an
ordinary share of the Company of 77 5 pence

5-year and 10-year Total Shareholder Return
performance

Figure 12 below and 13 on page 103 shows the
Company s TSR performance compared to the
performance of the FTSE Atl-Share and FTSE All-Share

Figure 12 S-year - JKX vsFTSE All Share Index and FTSE All-Share 01l & Gas producers
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Figure 13 10-year - JKX vsFTSE Atl Share Index and FTSE All-Share 01l & Gas producers
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Dil & Gas Producers Index indices over a 9-year and
10-year pened These indices have been chosen as
surtable broad comparators against which the
Company s shareholders may judge their relative
returns given that the Company 1s a member of the
FTSE All-Share and continue to be part of the FTSE
All-Share Qil & Gas Producers Index

The calculation of the return assumes dividends are
reinvested to purchase additional eguity

Value of £100 invested

An investment of £100 in the Company on 31 December
2007 was worth £20 55 at 31 December 2012 [same
investment on 31 December 2006 was worth £49 38 at
31 December 2011

Table 14 Executive Directors’ service contracts

Directors’ contracts

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Executive Directors service contracts are unbimited in
term and capable in normal circumsiances of
termination on 12 months notice

In the event of early termination, the Directors
contracts provide for compensation up to 2 maximum
level of basic salary for the notice period

Directors contracts of service wilt be available for
inspection at the Annuat General Meeting

Date Unexpired term Notice persed
Dr Paul Davies 1 January 2007 Rolling contract 12 months from Company or Director
Martin Miller 1 July 2007 Rolling contract 12 months from Company or Director
Peter Dixon 1 July 2007 Roiling contract 12 months from Company or Director

Cynthta Dubin 14 Novemnber 2011 Rolling contract 12 months from Company or Director
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Non-Executive Directors’ service contracts

All Non-Executive Dhrectors have specific terms of
engagement and their remuneration 15 determined by
the Board within the limits set by the Articles of
Asscaiation and based on independent surveys of fees
paid ta Non-Executive Directors of similar companies
The setting of the Chairman s remuneration 1s the
responsibility of the Board and not the Commuttee, as
recommended by Section D 2 3 of the Code

Non-Executive Directors service contracts are for an
indefinite term not a finite term as recommended by
Section B 2 3 of the Code subject to re-election en an
as required basis The Board continues 1o believe these
terms are approgriate given the Company size, the
Non-Executive skill set, and the continuing evaluation
of performance and independence Inthe event cf early
termination the Non-Executive Directors contracts
provide for cormnpensation of three months base fee

Non-Executive Directors’ fees

The Non-Executive Directors are paid a base fee for
carrying out their duties and responsibilities as
Directors, and fees for membership and, where
applicable chairmanship of each of the remuneration,
namination and audit committees

Table 15 Non-Executive Directors’ service contracts

Current Non-Executive Directors fees are paid as
shown In Table 16 below

The base fee was tast reviewed in 2012 and 1s based on
a per annum rate [in Sterting] that 1s compared to
published material concerning Non-Executive Director
fees in similar size companies and comparable
companies In the sector

No changes have been made to the NED fees since
202

Non-Executive Directors cannot participate in any of the
Company s share schemes nor are they eligibie to join
the Company s pensicn benehit arrangements

External board appointments

The Committee considers that external directorships
provide the Company s sertor executives with valuable
experience that 1s of beneht to the Company and
believes that it i1s reasonable for the individual Executve
Director to retain any fees receved from external
appotntments

Executwe Direciors are entitled to accept appeointments
outside the Company providing that the Chairman s
permission Is sought and granted

Date Notice period
Nigel Moore 12 July 2007 3 months from Cormnpany or Director
Dipesh Shah 0BE 1 June 2008 3 months from Company or Director
Lord Oxford 1 January 2002 3 months from Company or Director

Alastair Ferguson

1 Novemnber 2011

J maonths from Company or Director

Richard Murray

1 January 2013

3 months from Company or Director

Sir lan Prosser Iresigned 16 July 2012)

1 March 2011

3 menths from Company or Director

Table 16 Current Non-Executive Directors” fees

£000
Chairman of the Company 150"
Board membership fee 45
Semor Independent Director 10
Commutlee chairman
- Audit 10
- Remuneration 10
- Nomination 10
Commitiee membership
- Audit 5
- Rermnuneration 5
- Nomination >

* The Charman s fee includes amounts for Chairman of the Nomination Committee and membership of the Remuneration Commuttee
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Shareholder voting at the Annual General Meeting
At last year s Annual General Meeting hetd on 24 May
2012, the Directors Remuneration report recemved the
following votes from shareholders

Table 17 Shareholder voting at the Annual General Meeting .

Total number of voles % of votes cast
For 79,470,947 98 7%
Against 1,058,425 13%
Total votes (for and against, excluding withheld votes) 80,529,372 100%
Votes witheld* 1,295 B&% 1 6%
Total votes (for, against and withheld} 81,825 241 .

1) Awithheld vote 1s not a vote in law and 1S not counted in the calculation of votes cast "tor™ and “aganst™ a resolution

Part 2 Audited information

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration
The total amounts for directors remuneration were as follows

202 01 2012 2011
€000 £000 $000 5000
Emoluments 1,861 1829 2,949 2928
Gains on exercise of share options - 70 - 112
Pension contributions! 161 158 253 254

2,022 2,057 3,202 3294

1) Annual contribution by the Group to directors pension plans or cash in lieu

Developments in 2013

Richard Murray was appointed to the Board with effect
from 1 January 2013 and therefore receved no
remuneraiion in 2012 Richard was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Commattee on 17 January
2013
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Remuneration of the Directors of JKX 01l & Gas plc

Salary Annual Total Total Total Total
and fees Benefits bonus  Pension’ 2012 2011 20122 20112
$000 %000 $000 $000 $000 000 €000 €000
Executive Directors
D1 Paul Davies 629 10 249 94 982 920 620 577
Martin Milier 335 3 100 43 48t 462 303 289
Peter Dixon 335 5 100 59 490 464 309 290
Cynthia Dubin 443 4 127 66 640 57 405 36
tappointed 14/11/11)
Non-Executive Directors
Nigel Moore 170 - - - 170 97, 107 40
Dipesh Shah 0BE 10 - - - 101 113 b4 70
Lord Oxford /A - - - 71 107 45 65
Alastair Ferguson 79 - - - 9 22 50 14
lappointed 1/11/11}
Former Directors
Bruce Burrows - - - - - 580 - 362
[retired 30/9/11)
Michel-Marc Delcommune - - - - - 95 - 5%
[retired 31/12/2011)
Lord Fraser - - - - - b4 - 40
{retired 28/2/11)
Sir lan Prosser 188 - - - 188 201 19 125
(appainted 1/3/11
resigned 16/7/12)
2,351 22 576 253 3,202 3,182 2,022 1987

1) Annual contribution by the Group to directors pension plans or cash in lieu
2] These totals are shown in Sterling tor information purposes only Sterling is the currency sn which remuneration payments are made to the Directors

The average exchange rate used was £1/31 5807 [2011 E1/%1 6094}

Directors’ share options

The market price of a JKX share al 31 December 2012

was 77 5 pence [2011 136 0 pence] The range during
. 2012 was 68 0 pence to 187 8 pence [2011 128 0 pence

to 335 1 pencel

This report was approved by the Board of Directors an
8 Aprit 2013 and signed on its behalf by

Dipesh J Shah OBE, FRSA
Chamrman of the Remuneration Commuttee
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Directors’ share options
Options Options Options
Number of granted surrendered lapsed Number of Date from
options at dunng during during options at Exertise which Expiry
1 Jan 2012 penod penod period 31 Dec 2012 price exercisable date
Dr Paul Davies
fb) 37-Mar-G5 90000 - - - 90 000 £1 5150 17-Mar-08 17-Mar-15
fc) 27-Mar-09 194 500 - 194 500 - - £23075 27-Mar-12 27-Mar-19
(d) 29-Jun-10 155,500 - - ’ - 155,500 £24100 29-Jun-13 2%-Jun-20
(d) 29-Jun-10 155 500 - - - 155500 £0 000D 29-Jun-13 2%-Jun-20
(el 31-Mar-11 122,960 - - - 122,900 £3 1500 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-21
[e) 31-Mar-11 122,900 - - - 122,900 £0 0000 U-Mar-14 31-Mar-21
{f] 01-Jan-12 - 92,500 - 61,657 30833 £0 600D 31-Mar-13 01-Jan-22
(i1 28-Mar-12 - 252,200 - - 252 200 £0 0000 28-Mar-15 28-Mar-22
) 04-Jun-12 - 252 200 - - 252,200 €0 9750 04-Jun-15 06-Jun-22
841,300 594 900 194 500 61 467 1182,033
Peter Dixon
[b} 17-Mar-05 16 750 - - 16 750 £1 5150 17-Mar-08 17-Mar-15
lc] 27-Mar-09 82,000 - 82 000 - - £23075 27-Mar-12 27-Mar-19
[d) 29-Jun-10 &6 500 - - - 44,500 £246100 29-Jun-13 29-Jun-20
[d} 29-Jun-10 66,500 - - - 66 500 £0 0000 29-Jun-13 29-Jun-20
[e) 31-Mar-11 52 300 - - - 52 300 £3 1500 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-21
le) 31-Mar-11 52 300 - - - 52,300 £00c00 3 -Mar-14 31-Mar-21
[ D%-tan-12 - 390 - 24 607 12 303 £0 0000 H-Mar-13 01-Jan-22
If] 28-Mar-12 - 107 500 - - 107.500 £0 0000 2B-Mar-15 28-Mar-22
(f) 06-Jun-12 - 107,500 - -~ 107,500 £09750 04-Jun-15 0&-Jun-22
336,360 251,910 82 000 24 607 4BY 653
Martin Mitler
(a} 18-Mar-04 82 500 - - - B2 500 £0 &800 18-Mar-07 18-Mar-14
[b} 17-Mar-05 33,500 - - - 33,500 £1 5150 17-Mar-08 17-Mar-15
[c} 27-Mar-09 82 000 - 82 D00 - - £2 3073 27-Mar-12 27-Mar-19
(d} 29-Jun-10 446 500 - - - 66,500 £24100 29-Jun-13 29-Jun-20
[d} 29-Jun-10 64 500 - - - 656,500 £0 0000 29-Jun-13 29-Jun-20
(e] 31-Mar-11 52300 - - - 52 300 £31500 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-21
(el 31-Mar-11 52 308 - - - 52,300 £0 0000 31-Mar-14 31-Mar-21
[f) 01-Jan-12 - 36710 - 24,607 12 303 £oooco 31-Mar-13 01-Jan-22
[f} 28-Mar-12 - 107,500 - - 107,500 £0 0060 28-Mar-15 28-Mar-22
If] 04-Jun-12 - 107 500 - - 107 500 £0 9750 04-Jun-15 04-Jun-22
435,600 251910 82,000 24,607 580 703
Cynthia Dubin
[f] 28-Mar-12 - 177 400 - - 177 400 £0 0000 28-Mar-15 28-Mar-22
[} 06-Jun-12 - 177 400 - - 177 400 £0 9750 06-Jun-15 04-Jun-22
- 354,800 - - 354,800

lal 2001 Share Options Scheme In respect 2004
[bl 2001 Share Dpuions Scheme tn respect 2005
[c} 200t Share Dptions Scheme in respect 2009

fd) 2010 Share Opiions Scheme in respect 2010
le] 2010 Share Options Scheme 1n respect 2011
1#]) 2010 Share Options Scheme in respect 2012
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual
Report the Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors o prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Durectors have prepared the Group financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards [ IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,
and the parent company financial statements in
accerdance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice [Uniled Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable taw] Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the stale of alfairs of the Group and the
Company and of the profit or loss of the Company and
Group for that period In preparing these financial
staterments, the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

» state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unicn and applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed subject to any material departures
disclosed and explatned in the Group and parent
company financial statements respectively

= prepare the financial statements en the going concern
basts uniess it I1s Inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company s transactions and disclose with
reasonabte accuracy at any time the financial pesition
of the Company and the Group and enable them io
ensure that the hinancial statements and the
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and as regards the Group financial statements,
Article 4 of the JAS Requlation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and
Integrity of the company s website Legistation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents may differ from
legislation in other junisdictiens

Each of the Directors whose names and funcuions are
Listed in the Directors Report confirm that, 1o the best
of their knowledge

= the Group financial statements, which have been
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU gwe a true and fair view of the assets, Liabilities,
financial position and toss of the Group and

¢ the Directors report contained in the Annual Report
inctudes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that H faces

The Directors in office at the date of this report have
each confirmed that

50 far as the Director 1s aware, there 15 no audit
information of which the Company s auditors are
unaware and

he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a Director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any relevant sudit information and
to establtish that the Company s auditors are aware of
that information

S b o

By order of the board
Limor Gonen
Company Secretary
8 Apnl 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of JKX Oil & Gas plc

We have audited the Group financial staternents of
JKX 01l & Gas plc for the year ended 31 December 2012
which comprise the Consolidated income statement,
the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the Consolidated statement of financial position, the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity, the
Consolidated statement of cash flows and the Noles
to the financial statements The financial reporting
frarmework that has been applied in their preparation
1s applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
As exptained more fully in the Statement of Directors
responsibilities set out on page 108, the Direclors are
responsible for the preparation of the Group financial
statements and for being satishied that they give a true
and fair view Dur responsibility is to audit and express
an opinien on the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicabte law and International
Standards on Auditing {UX and tretand] Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, mncluding the opinions has been prepared
for and only for the company s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpese We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or {o any other person to whom this
repert 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent In writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining ewidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 1o
give reasonable assurance that the hinancial stalements
are free from material misstatement whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to

the Group s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the
Directors and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition we read all the financial and
non-financial information in the Annual Report to
wentify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements f we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

Opsnion on financial statements
In our opinton the Group financiat statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group s
affairs as at 31 Decernber 2012 and of its loss and
cash flows for the year then ended,

« have been property prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

* have been prepared in accerdance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the AS Regulatton

Opinton on other matter prescribed by the
Compantes Act 20046
In our opinIon

* the information given in the Directors report for the
financial year for which the Group financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the Greup
financial statements,

+ the information given in the Corporate governance
statement set cut on pages 83to 91 with respect to
internal control and risk management systems and
about share capital structures s consistent with the
Group financtal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Cempanies Act 2006 we are regquired to
report to you if 1n our opinion

» certain disclosures of Directors remuneration
specifred by law are not made, or

« we have not recewved afl the information and
explanations we require for cur audit,

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

+ the Directors statement, set out on page 80 in
relation to going concern

the part of the Corporate governance statement
relating to the Company s compliance with the nine
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review, and

certain elements of the repert to shareholders by the
Board on Directors remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately on lhe parent company
financial statements of JKX Oil & Gas plc for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and on the information in the

Remuneratiopyeport thawas having been

audited

Jason B Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

B Aprit 2013
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2012 2011
Note $000 $000
Revenue 4 202,858 236 B4
Cost of sales
Production based taxes 8 147,353) (67 102]
Write off of exploration and evaluation costs 5lb) {4,884) 12,920
Exceptional itemn - provision for impairment of Hungarian all and gas assets 5(a) 115,093) -
Exceptional item - accelerated depreciation of Ukrainian oit and gas assets 5lal {30,723) -
Other cost of sales (76,823) 149 573)
Total cost of sales 18 (174,876)  [129595)
Gross profit 27,982 107,259
Adrmunistrative expenses (21,179) {25 7065}
lLoss)/profit on foreign exchange 11,034) 460
[ Profit from operations befare exceptional items 51,585 82014 J
Profit from operations after exceptional stems 5,769 82014
Finance income 19 400 915
Finance costs 20 {4,748) (852]
Profit before tax 1,621 82,077
Taxation - current (18,858) [21,769)
Taxation - deferred
- before the exceptional items 13,8791 (117
- on the exceptionalitems 9,779 -
Total deferred taxation 5,900 [1171)
Total taxation 25 [12,958) (22 940}
{Loss)/profit for the year attributable 10 owners of the parent {11,335) 59 137
Basic earnings/lloss) per 10p ordinary share [in centsl
- before exceptional items 27 14 36 3437
- after exceptional items {6 59) 34 37
Diluted earnings/lloss] per 18p ordinary share [in cents)
- before exceptional items 14 25 3422
- after exceptional items 16 59) 3422
Consolidated statement of comprehensive iIncome
far the year ended 31 December
2012 2011
000 00D
{Loss)profit for the year 111,335) 59,137
Currency translatron differences 17,302 [18,383)
Net movement on cash flow hedges i2,872) 2877
Total comprehensive Income attributable to
- Owners of the parent 3,095 43,626

ilems in the statement above are disciosed net of tax The Income tax relating to each compongnt of other compretensive income 1s disclosed in note 26
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Consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December
2012 201
Note $000 $000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 5fal 479,875 498 834
Other intangible assets 5(bl 21,137 23,546
Dther recevable 4 4,203 24 238
Deferred tax assets 25 22,698 13,432
529,913 560 050
Current assets
Inventories 8 8,934 3,669
Trade and other recewables 9 35,4046 21405
Restricted cash 10 587 9777
Cash and cash equivalents 10 12,042 19,122
56,969 53973
Total assets 586,882 614023
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Current tax labilities (7571 (2,778)
Trade and other payables 1 [33,225) (44 509]
Borrowngs 12 [14,95%) _ (35,930}
Dervatve liabibity 13 - [3,169)
(48,933) (86 386)
Non-current Liabilities
Provistons 17 [3,420] {3 445)
Other payables (8,203) 14,356)
Deferred tax labilities 26 i16,427] {13 061)
{26,050] (20 842]
Total Liabilities (74,983) [107,248)
Net assets 511,899 506,779
EQUITY
Share capital 15 26,657 26 657
Share premium 97,474 97476
Merger reserve 30,680 30,680
Other reserves
- Capital redemption reserve 587 587
- Equity share options reserve 7,512 5483
- Foreign currency transtation reserve 129,177} (46 479)
- Hedge reserve - 2,872
Retained earntngs 378,164 389 499
Total equity 511,899 506,775

These financial statements on pages 11010 147 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2013 and signed

on its behalf by

Dr Paul Davies ' Cynthia Dubin
Director Cin / u,t/ Director
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Equity Foreign
Camtal share  currency
Share Share Merger redemption options transtation Hedge  Retained Total
:apltal premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings equny
%000 $000 %000 $000 $000 4000 $000 4000 %000

ALt January 2011 26 649 97363 30680 587 3914 (28,094 - 337569 468,666
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 59137 59137
Exchange differences arising on
translation of overseas operations - - - - - 118383 - - 118383}
Net movement on cash flow hedges - - - - - - 2872 - 2872
Total comprehensive tncome
attributable to owners of the parent - - - - - 18,383} 2872 59137 43,6246
Transaction with owners
tssue of ordinary shares 8 13 - - - - - - 21
Share-based payment charge - - - - 1 569 - - - 1,569
Dwidends paid - - - - - - - (72071 {7.207)
Total transactions with owners 8 113 - - 1 569 - - (72071 15517
At 31 December 2011 26,657 97474 30,680 587 5483 [46479) 2872 389,499 506,775
At 1 January 2012 264657 97476 30480 587 5,483 |46,47%) 2872 389499 506775
Loss for the year - - - - - - - [11335] 11335)
Exchange differences arising on
translation of everseas operations - - - - - 17302 - - 17302
Net movement on cash flow hedges - - - - - - [2872) - [2.872)
Tatal comprehensive iIncome
attributable to owners of the parent - - - - - 17302 (28720 (11335)  [3,095)
Transaction with owners
Share-based payment charge - - - - 2029 - - - 2,029
Total transactions with owners - - - - 2,029 - - - 2,029
At 31 December 2012 26,657 97476 30480 587 7512 (29177 - 378164 511,899




113 Understanding JKX 1 Operational review 44
Strategic review 17 Corporate Social Respensibility &4
Financial and risk review 28 Governance 78
Financial statements 158
Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December
2012 2011
Note $000 $000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 29 109,288 124150
Interest paid (8,946) (2,416)
Income tax paid (21,8371 (22 737)
Net cash generated from cperating activifies 78,505 98,997
Cash flows from investing activities
Deferred payment on Russian acquisition 1 - 12,214]
Interest received 456 724
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 22 -
Purchase of intangible assets [3,805) (12,835)
Purchase of property plant and equipment 166,687  [149,873)
Net cash used in investing actvities {70,014)  [164,199)
Cash flows from tinancing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares - 2
Restricted cash 9,190 {9 777}
Repayment of borrowings (40,000) (10,000]
Funds recewved from borrowings [net of costs] 14,951 49,500
Dividends paid to sharehotders 28 - {7,207
Net cash lused inl/generated from financing actiittes 15,85¢9) 22.637
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the year (7,368} {42,565)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 288 (331]
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 19,122 62,018
Cash and cash equivatents at 31 Decemnber 10 12,042 19122
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1 General Information

JKX 01l & Gas plc [the uttimate parent of the Group
hereafter “the Company”] Is a public imited company
Listed on the London Stock Exchange which is domiciled
and incorporated in England and Wales under the UK
Compantes Act The registered number of the Company
1s 03050645 The registered office 1s 6 Cavendish
Square, Lendon W1G OPD and the principal place of
business 1s disclosed in the introduction to the Annual
Report

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries, {the Group ), are the exploration for,
appraisal and development of oil and gas reserves

2 Basis of preparation

The Group s financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards [IFRSs) as adopled by the European Union,
Internationat Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee [IFRIC] interpretations and the Companies
Act 2006 applicable for Companies reporting under
IFRS and therefore the consolidated financrat
statements camply with Article 4 of the EU IAS
Regulations The Group s financial statements have
been prepared under the historicat cost convention, as
medified for dervative instruments held at fair vaiue
through profit or loss The principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group are set out below

The disclosed pelicies have been applied consistently by
the Group for both the current and previous financial
year with the exception of the new standards adopted

The financial information has been prepared on a going
concern basis following review by the directors of
forecast cash flows for the next 12 months, inctuding
consideration of the ability of the Group to change the
timing and scale of capital expenditure, if required In
making their assessment the Directors have considered
sensitivities 1o their forecast cash fiows including
reducing forecast oil and gas realisations, and
ncreasing costs

The EU IFRS financial information has been drawn up
on the basis of accounting policies consistent with
those applied in the financial statements for the year to
31 December 2011 except for the following

» Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments
Bisclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets  This
amends required disclosures to help users of
financial statements evaluate the risk exposures
relating to transfers of financial assets and the effect
of those risks on an entity s financial position The
amendmen! relates to disclosure only and has no
impact on Group earnings or shareholders funds m
the current or prior year

The Group has not applied the following
prenouncements which are not mandatory for 2012

Mandatery for 2013

* Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Siatements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive Income

+ |1AS 1% [revised 2011), Employee Benefits

+ |AS 28 [revised 2011), Investments in Associates and
Jeint Ventures

+ Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments
Disclosures - Offsetting Financiat Assets and
Financial Liabilities

+ IFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
+ IFRS 11 Jownt Arrangements

tFRS 10 and 11 are mandatory for 2013 under IFRS but
2014 under EU IFRS Early adoption 1s permitted under
EUIFRS and the Group does not expect to early adopt

+ [FRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other Entittes
s IFRS 13, Fair Vatue Measurement

* Annual improvements 2011

Mandatory for 2014 and endorsed by the EU

¢ Amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments
Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Mandatory for 2015 and not yet endorsed by the EU
« IFRS 9, Financial instruments

3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated linancial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company [its subsidiaries] made up to
31 December each year All intragroup balances
transactions, income and expenses and profits or
losses, including unrealised profits arising from
Intragroup transactions have been ebiminated on
consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies in
order to obtain benefits from their activities Control is
presumed to exist where the Group owns more than one
haif of the voling rights [which does not always equate
to percentage ownership] unless it can be
demonstrated that ownership does not constitute
control Control does not exist where other parties hold
veto rights over significant operating and financial
decisions In assessing control, potential voting rights
that are currenily exercisable or convert:ble are taken
into account The consolidated financial statements
include all the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses
and cash flows of the Companses and their subsidiaries
after eliminating intragroup transachions as noted
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above Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
onwhich control 1s translerred to the Group They are
de-censolidated from the date that control ceases
Uniform accounting policies are applied across the
Group

Interests in Joint venture agreements

A joint venture 18 a contractual arrangement whereby
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity that ts subject to joint control Where a Group
company undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements derectly, the Group s shares of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointty with
other venturers are recognised in the financial
statements of the relevant company and classified
according to their nature

Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of
interests in Jjointly controlled assets are accounted for
on an accrual basis tncome from the sale or use of the
Group s share cof the output of jointly controlled assets,
and s share of joint venture expenses are recognised
when it 1s probable that the economic benehts
assoclated with the transactions will flow to/from the
Group and their amount can be measured reliably

Joint venture arrangements which involve the
eslablishment of a separate entity In which each
venturer has an interest are referred te as jointly
controlled entities [JCE ) The Group reports iis
interests in jorntly controlled entities using
propertionate consolidation - the Group s share of the
assets Liabdities, income and expenses of jomntly
controlled entities are combined with the equivalent
items In the consolidated financiat statemenis on a
line-by-line basis

Where the Group transacts with its jointly contrelled
entities, unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group s interest in the joint venture

Foreign currencies

The presentation currency of the Group 15 the US Dollar
based on the fact that the Group s primary transactions
originate in or are dictated by, the US Oollar, these
being amongst others oil sales and procurement of rigs
and drilling services

Each entity in the Group ts measured using the currency
of the prirnary economic environment in whsch the
entity operates { the functional currency ) Foreign
currency transactions are transtated into functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where ilems are
re-measured Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denorminated in foreign
currencies are recognised In the income stalement

On consolidation of subsidiaries and JCEs with a non
US Dotlar presentation currency, their staternents of
financial position are transtated into US Doltar at the
closing rate and inceme and expenses at the average
monthly rate All resulting exchange differences arising
In the period are recognised 1n other comprehensive
income, and cumulatively in the Group s translation
reserve Such translation differences are reclassified to
profit or loss in the period in which any such foreign
operation 1s disposed of

Subsidiaries within the Group hold monetary
intercompany balances for which settlement ts neither
planned nor likely to accur in the foreseeable future and
thus thisis considered to be part of the Group s net
investment in the relevant subsidiary An exchange
difference arises on transtation inthe company income
statement which on consolidation 1s recognised in
equily, only being recognised in the income statement
on the disposal of the net investment

The major exchange rates used for the revaluation of
the closing stalement of financial position at

31 December 2012 were $1/£0 6 [2011 $1/€0 6!,
$1/UAHBO(2011 $1/UAH 8 1), $1/RUB 30 37 {2011
$1/RUB 32 2) $1/HUF 222 1 (2011 $1/HUF 241 7),
$1/BGN 1 5(2011 $1/BGN 1 5)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acguisition are treated as assets/liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate

Property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets

Property plant and equipment comprises the Group s
tangible ol and gas assets together with computer
equipment, motor vehicles and other equipment and
are carred at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and accurnutated impairment losses Cost includes
purchase price and construction costs for qualilying
assets, together with borrowing costs where applicable,
in accordance with the Group s accounting policy
Depreciation of these assets commences when the
assets are ready for theiwr intended use

Oit and gas assets

Exploration appraisal and development expenditure 1s
accounted for under the successful efforts method
The successful efforts method means that only costs
which reiate directly to the discovery and development
of specific oil and gas reserves are capitalised

Exploration and evaluation costs are capitalised within
intangible assels Development expenditure on
producing assets I1s accounted for In accordance with
IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment Cosis incurred
prior to oltaining legal rights to explore are expensed
immediately to the iIncome statement
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All tease and licence acguisition costs, geological and
geophysical costs and other direct costs of exploration
evaluation and development are capitalised as
intangible assets or property plant and equipment
according to thewr nature Intangible assets are not
amortised and comprise costs relating to the
exploration and evaluation of properties which the
Directors consider to be unevaluated until reserves are
appraised as commercial at which time they are
transferred 1o property plant and equipment following
an impairment review and are depreciated accordingly
Where properties are appraised to have no commercial
value, the associated costs are treated as an
impairment loss tn the period inwhich the
determination 1s made

Costs related to hydrocarbon production activities are
depreciated on a field by Freld unit of production method
based on cormmercial proved plus probable reserves of
the production licence, except In the case of assets
whase useful life drffers from the lifetime of the field,
which are depreciated on a straighi-line basis over their
anticipated useful life of up to 10 years

The calculation of the unit of production depreciation
takes account of estimated future devetopment costs
and 15 based on current pertod end unescalated price
tevels Changes Iin reserves and cost estimates are
recognised prospectively

Other assets

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value, over their estimated useful
lives using the siraight-line methed, for the following
¢lasses of assets

Motor vehicles - 4 years
Cemputer equipment -3 years
Other equipment -5to i0years

The estimated useful lives of property piant and
equipment and their residual values are reviewed on an
annual basis and, I} necessary, changes in useful lives
are accounted for prospectively Assets under
construction are nat subject to depreciation until the
date on which the Group makes them availabie for use

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an asset I1s determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and 15 recognised n the iIncome statement for the
relevant periog

Business cambinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries 1s acceunted for using
the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1s
measured at the aggregate of the fair vatues, at the
date of exchange of assets given, liabiities incurred or
assumed and equity instruments ssued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree

The acquiree s identifiable assets, Llabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the criteria for
recogmtion under IFRS 3 {rewised) are recognised at
thewr fair value at the acquisition date Acquisition costs
are expensed

Goodwill 1 recognised as an asset and (s initially
measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group s share in the net
fair value of the acquiree s identifiable assets tiabilities
and contingent babilities After initiai recogaition,
goodwill I1s measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and is tested annuatly for
impairment fmpairment losses on goodwil! are nol
reversed

On disposat of a substdiary or jointly controlled entity,
the attributable amount of unamortised goodwiil, which
has not been subject toimparrment, 1s included in the
determination of ihe profit or {oss on disposal

Impatrment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Al each reparting date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of tts property plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there 15 any
indication that those assets have sulfered an
impairmeni loss |ndividual assels are grovped together
as a cash-generating unit for impairment assessment
purposes at the lowest level at which their identifiable
cash flows, that are largely iIndependent of the cash
flows of the other Groups assets, can be determined

If any such indication of Impairment exists the Group
makes an estimate of its recoverable amount

The recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less
costs to setl and value in use Where the carrying
amount of an Individual asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset/cash-
generating unit 1s considered imparred and 1s written
down to its recoverable amount Fair value less costs to
sell 1s determined by discounting the post tax cash
flows expected to be generated by the cash-generating
unit net of associated selling costs and takes into
account assumptions, market participants would use
estimating far value Inassessing the value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks
specific 1o the asset/cash-generating unit and are
discounted to their present vatue that reflects the
current market indicators

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset/cash-generating unit 1s
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that wouid have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the assel [cash-generating umit) in prior
years Areversal of an impairment loss s recognised as
income immediately
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Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial posttion
when the Group becomes party to the contractuat
provisions of the instrument

Derivative financial Instruments

The Group may use derivative financral instruments
(derwatives} primariiy to hedge its risks associated with
ot price fluctuations relating to certain firm
commitments and forecasted transactions Any such
derivatives are initially recorded at fair value on the date
at which the contract 1s entered into and subsequently
re-measured at fair value on subsequent reporting
dates

A financial asset or Liability 1s derecognised when the
obligation under the asset or liability 1s discharged,
cancelled or expires

The purpose for which a derivative 1s used s
established at inception To gualify for hedge
accounting, the derivative must be highly effective in
achleving Its objective and this effecliveness must be
documented at inception and throughout the period of
the hedge relationship The hedge must be assessed on
an ongoing basis and determined to have been highly
effective throughout the financial reporting periods for
which the hedge was designated

For the cash flow hedge, the portion of the gains and
losses on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to
be an effective hedge is taken to equity and the
ineffective portion, as well as any change in time value
1s recognised in the consolidated income statement
The gains and tosses taken to equity are subsequently
transierred to the consolidated income statement
during the period in which the hedged transaction
affects the conselidated income statement or if the
hedge 1s subseguently deemed to be neffective

Gains or losses on derivatives thal do not qualify for
hedge accounting treatment [ether from inception or
during the Life of the instrument) are taken directly to
the consolidated income statement in the period

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs and are subseguently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
Interest expense recegnised on an effective yield basis
The effective interest method 1s a method of calculating
the amertised cost of a financial Liability and of
attocating Interest expense over the relevant persod

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial Lability, or, where
appropriate a shorter period

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recewables are recognised initially

at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost reduced by any provision for
impairment A provision for imparrment of trade
recewvables is established when there 1s objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due Indicators of impairment would include
financial difficulties of the debior, likelihood of the
debtor s insolvency, default in payment or a sigmficant
deterioration in credit worthiness Any impairment Is
recogrised in the iIncome statement within
Administrative expenses

Loans and recewvables are non-derivative financial
instruments which have a fixed or easily determinable
value They are recognised at cest tess any provisions
for impairment in their value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and
current balances with banks and similar institutions,
which are readily convertible to known amounis of cash
Cash equivalents are short-termwith an original
maturity of less than 3 months, highty bguid investments
that are readily convertible te known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
invalue

Restricted cash

Restricted cash is disclosed separately on the face of
the staternent of financial position and denoted as
restricted when it 1s not under the exclusive control of
the Group

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are inttially measured at fair
value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method if the time
value of money is significant

Financial labtlities and equity

Financial babilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into Anequdy instrument 1s any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assels
of the Group after deducting all of its tiabilities Equity
instruments ssued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds recetved net of direct Issue costs

Inventories

Inventory I1s comprised of produced ol and gas or
certatn materials and equipment that are acquired for
future use The oit and gas s valued at the lower of
average production cost and net realisable value, the
materials and equipment Inveniory ts valued at
purchase cost Cost comprises direct materials and,
where applicable, direct labour costs plus atiributable
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overheads based on a normal level of activity and otiver
costs associated in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition Cost s catculated using
the weighted average method Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distnbution and any provisions
for obsolescence

Treasury shares

JKX Oil & Gas ple treasury shares held by the Company
are classified in shareholders equity The consideration
paid including any directly attributable incremental
costs is deducted from eqguity attributable to the
Company s equity holders until the shares are cancelled
or reissued Where such shares are subsequently sold
or reissued, any constderation received, net of
transaction costs, 1s included in equity atirtbulabte to
the Company s equity helders No gain or less 1s
recognised 1n the financial statements on the purchase,
sale, 1ssue or cancellation of treasury shares

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
tax payable and deferred tax

The current tax payable 1s based on taxabte profit for
the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because It excludes
itemns of iIncome or expense that are taxable or
deductibte in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible The Groups
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacled or substantively enacted by the
reporting date

Deferred tax I1s the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
staternents and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit Deferred tax Liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be
avallable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised Such assets and lisbilities
are not recognised If the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initizl recogmition [other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
Liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax
prefit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax ltabilities zre recognised for taxabte
temporary differences anising on investments in
subsidianes, and mlerests in joint ventures, except
where the Group 15 able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it i1s probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets I1s reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit witt
be avaitable to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered Any such reduction shali be reversed to the
extent that 1t becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liabibity 1s
settled or the asset realised based on tax rates and
laws substantively enacted by the reporting date
Deferred tax 1s charged or credited :n the income
staternent except when It relates tostems charged or
credited directly to equity, 1n which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and tiabilities are offset when there
exists a legal and enforceabte night to ofiset and they
relate to iIncome taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends 1o settle its current tax
assets and Liabilities on & net basis

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported ina manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker The Chief Operating
Decision Maker, who 1s responsible for allocating
resgurces and assessing performance of the operating
segments has beendentified as the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors of the Group that make the
strateqic decisions

Share options

The Group tssues equity-settled share-based payments
to the Executive Direclors and Senior Management
Equity-setiled share-based payments are measured at
fair value at the date of grant The fair value of the
employee services receved in exchange for the grant of
options s expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting pertod, based on the Group s estimate of shares
that will eventually vest Al each subsequent reporting
date the Group calculates the estimated cumulatve
charge for each award having regard to any change in
the number of options that are expecied to vest and the
expired portion of the vesling period The change in this
cumulative charge since the tast reporting date 1s
expensed Once an option vests, no further adjustment
is made 1o the aggregate amount expensed The
expected life of the options depends on the behaviour of
the option holders, which 1s incorporated into the opticn
madel conststent with historic data The fair vatues
caleulated are inherently subjective and uncertain due
to the assumptions made and the limitations of the
model used
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The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capitat [nomnal
value of 10p per share) and share premium when the
options are exercised

The rules regarding the scheme are described in the
Remuneration Report on pages 92 and 107 and in
note 24 on share based payments

Bonus scheme

The Group cperates a bonus scheme for its Directors
and employees The scheme has four performance
cenditions 1 hinancial objectives 2 increase in share
price 3 key strategic objectives and 4 safety
performance conditions The bonus payments are made
annually normally in January of each year and the
costs are accrued in the period to which they relate

Pension costs

The Group contributes to the indwvidual pension scheme
of the guatifying employees cheoice Contributions are
charged io the income statement as they become
payable The Group has no further payment otligations
once the contrihutions have been paid

Decommissioning

Proviston 1s made for the cost of decommissioning
assets at the ime when the obligabion te decommission
arises Such provision represents the estimated
discounted Lizbility [the discount rate used currently
being at 10% (2011 10%]) for cosis which are expected
to be incurred in removing production facilities and site
restoration at the end of the producing lite of each field
A corresponding item of property plant and equipment
Is also created at an amount egual to the provision This
1s subsequently depreciated as part of the capital costs
of the production facilities Any change in the present
value of the estimated expenditure attributable to
changes in the estimates of the cash flow or the current
estimate of the discount rate used are reflected as an
adjustment to the provision and the property plant and
equipment The unwinding of the discount Is recognised
as a finance cost

Revenue recognition

Sales of oil and gas producis are recogrised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have passed
to the buyer and it can be reliably measured This
generally occurs when the product i1s physically
transferred into a vessel, pipe or other delivery
mechanism Revenue from other services are
recognised when the services have been performed
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value ot the
consideration recewved excluding discounts rebates,
value added tax { VAT } and other sales taxes or duty

Revenue resuliing from the production of oil and
natural gas from properties in which the Group has an
interest with other producers I1s recognised on the basis

of the Group s working interest [entiitement metheod]
Gans and losses on derivative contracts are reported
on a net basis in the consclidated Income statement

Interest iIncome 1s recogrused as the interest accrues,
by reference to the net carrying amount at the effective
interesi rate applicable

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incrementat
costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of ordinary
shares are recognised as a deduction from share
prermium, net of any tax effects When share capstal
recognised as equity 18 repurchased the amount of the
consideration paid, which inctudes directly attributable
costs, net of any tax effects, 1s recognised as a
deduction from share premium Repurchased shares
are classified as treasury shares and are presented in
the reserve for own shares When treasury shares are
sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received 15
recogmsed as an increase In equily and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction 1s presented in
share premium

Leasing

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the income statement on & straighi-line basis aver the
term of the relevant lease The Group has no finance
leases

Dividends

Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid
to the Company s shareholders Final dividends are
recognised when they are approved by shareholders

Exceptional item

Exceptional tems comprise items of income and
expense Including tax items, that are materal 1n
amount and unlikely to recur and which merit separate
disclosure n order to provide an understanding of the
Group s underlying financial performance Examples of
events giving rise to the disclosure of material items of
income and expense as excephional ttems include, but
are not limited to, Impairment events, disposals of
operattons or individual assets litigation claims by or
against the Group and the restructuning of components
of the Group s operations See note 5 for further details

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future The resutting accounting
estimates will by definition, seldorn equat the related
actual results The estimates and assumptions that
have a risk of causing material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabiltties within the
next financial year are discussed below
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a) Recoverability of oIl and gas assets and intangible
oil and gas costs [Note 5)

Costs captalised as oil and gas assets in property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets are
assessed for impairment when circumstances suggest
that the carrying value may exceed its recoverahte
value Aspart of this assessment management has
carrited out an impairment test [ceiling test) on the oil
and gas assets class:fied as property, plant and
equipment This test compares the carrying value of the
assets al the reporting date with the expected
discounted cash flows from each project For the
discounted cash flows to be calculated, management
has used a production profile based on its best estimate
of proven and probable reserves of the assets and a
range of assumptions, including an internal oil and gas
price profile benchmarked to mean analysts consensus
and a discount rate which, taking into account other
assumptions used in the calculation, management
considers to be reilective of the risks This assessment
involves judgement as to (il the likely commearciality of
the asset, i) proven probable and possible [ 3P )
reserves which are estimated using standard
recognised evaluation techmigues (i) fulure revenues
and estimated development costs pertaining to the
asse! (] the discount rate lo be applied for the
purposes of deriving a recoverable value and vl the
value ascribed to contingent resources assoclated

with the asset

b) Carrying value of intangible exploration and
evaluation expenditure {Note 5 (b}

The amounts for intangible expleration and evaluation
assets represent the costs of active exploration projects
the commerciality of which 1s unevaluated until
reserves can be appraised Where a project 1s
sufficiently advanced the recoverability of intangible
exploration assets 15 assessed by comparing the
carrying value to estimates of the present value of
projects The present values of intangible exploratton
assets are inherently judgemental Exploration and
evaluation costs will be written off to the income
statement unless cormmercial reserves are eslablished
or the deterrmination process is not completed and
there are no indications of impairment The outcome of
ongotng exploration, and therefore whether the carrying
value of exploration and evaluation assets will
ultimately be recovered, is inherently uncertain

c]) Depreciation of oil and gas assets (Note 5)

Oil and gas assets hetd i property plant and
equipment are mainly depreciated on a unit of
production basis at a rate calculated by reference to
proved plus probable reserves and incorporating the
estimaied future cost of developing and extracting
those reserves Future development cosls are
estimated using assumptions as to the numbers of
wells required to produce those reserves, the cost of

the wells future production facilsties and operating
cosls together with assumptions on il and gas
realisations

d) Decommussioning (Note 17)

The Group has decommissioning obligattons in respect
of its interests in Ukraine Russia and Hungary The full
extent to which the provision 1s required depends on the
legal requirements at the ime of decornmissioning, the
costs and timing of any decommissioning works and
the discount raie applied o such costs The
decommissioning provision is updated each year to
reflect management s best estirmates based on the
current economic environment of the key assumptions
used Actual decommissioning costs will ulimately
depend upon future marke! prices for the necessary
decommissioning works required, which will reflect
market conditions at the relevant time Furthermore,
the timing of decommissioning 1s likely to depend an
when the fields cease to produce at economically viable
rates This in turn will depend upon future oil and gas
prices which are inherently uncertain

e} Taxation [Note 25)

Tax provisions are recognised when it 1s considered
probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to
the tax authorities In this case, prowision 1s made for
the amount that 1s expected 1o be settled The provision
1s updated at each reporting date by management by
interpretation and application of known local tax laws
with the assistance of established legat, tax and
accounting advisors These interpretations can change
over ime depending on precedent set and
circumstances in addition new laws can come into
effect which can conflict with others and, therefore, are
subject to varying inferpretations and changes which
may be applied retrospectively A change in estimate of
the likelihood of a future outflow or In the expected
amount to be settled would result in a charge or credit
to income in the period Inwhich the change occurs

Deferred tax assets are recogrised only to the extent it
1s considered probable that those assets will be
recoverable This involves an assessment of when those
deferred tax assels are likely to reverse, and a
judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient
taxable prahits available to offset the 1ax assets when
they do reverse This requires assumptions regarding
future profitability and 1s therefore inherently uncertain
To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability
change there can be an increase or decrease inthe
level of deferred tax assets recognised that can result
in a charge or credit in the period in which the

change occurs
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Tax provisions are based on enacted or substantvely
enacted laws To the extent that these change there
would be a charge or credit to inceme both in the period
of charge which would include any impact on
cumulative provisions and in future periods

fl Derivatives [Note 13)

Under the pre-paid swap transaction with Credit Swisse
[nternationat {see note 12} entered into during 2011,
the Group sold forward 36,000 bbl/month of crude at
$94 00 Urals Med per barrel while retaining value if
prices rise above $130 per bbl This derwative linancial
instrument Is stated I1n the statement of financial
position at the reporting date at its fair value Changes
in the fair value of this derwative are recorded each
peried In comprehensive Income as specific hedge
accounting criteria have been met The fairvalue 1s
determined using forward ol price curves which
represent the Group s estimates of the prices at which a
buyer or seller could contract today for delivery of il or
settlement of an orl-price conlract al future dates

The Group generally bases forward price curves upon
readily obtainable market price quotatrons, as the
Group s oit contracts do not generally extend beyond the
actively traded portion of these curves However, the
forward price curves used are only an estimate of how
future prices will move and are, therefore, subjective
All ebligations under the pre-pad swap concluded with
a final payment to Credit Sinsse 1n December 2012

4 Segmental analysis

The Group has one single class of business, being the
exploration for, appraisal, development and producticn
of ot and gas reserves Accordingly the reportable
operating segments are determtned by the
geographical focation of the assets

There are five reportable operating segments which are
based on the internai reports prewided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker The Ukraine, Russia and
Hungary are involved with production and exploration
the Rest of World 15 involved in exploration and
development and the UK ts the home of the head office
and purchases material, capital assets and services on
behalf of other segments The Rest of the World
segment comprises operations 1 Bulgarna and
Slovakia Transfer prices between segments are set on
an arms length basis in a manner simitar to
transactions with third parties Segment revenue,
segment expense and segment results include
transfers between segments Those transfers are
eliminated on consolidation

Segment results and assets include stems directly
altributable to the segment Segment assets consist
primarily of property, plant and equipment inventories
and recevables Capital expenditures comprise
additions to property, plant and eguipment




122

Group financial statements

Notes to the financial statements continued

JKX 01L& Gas ple Annuat Report 2012

2012 UK Ukraine Russia Hungary Rest of world Sub Total Eliminations Total
$000 $000 3000 $000 $000 $000 $000 3000
Externat revenue
Revenue by location of asset
- Ol - 58891 - 1478 - 60 369 - 60,369
- Gas - 11197 51 5142 - 122,229 - 122229
- Liquefied petroleum gas - 18,548 - - - 18,548 18,548
- Management services/other 59 1647 - - b 1712 - 1712
59 191,062 511 6,620 6 202858 - 202858
Inter segment revenue
- Management services/other 14,320 - - - - 14320 {14 320] -
- Equipment 173 - - - - 173 1173) -
14 493 - - - - 14493 [14493) -
Total revenue 14552 191062 5111 6620 6 217351 |14 4%93] 202858
Profit before tax
{Lossiprofit from operations (91701 41,260 (12.017) (13912 118 6259 1490 5769
Finance income 400 - 600
Finance cost |4 748) - (4,748}
211 [490]) 14627
Assets
Property plant and equipment 1,252 170307 299,640 5,127 3,549 479,875 - 479875
Intangible assets - 1493 - 1237 7273 21137 - 21137
Other receivable - - 6,203 - - 6203 - 6,203
Deferred tax 615 3274 18 809 - - 22,698 - 22498
Cash and cash equivalents 10 222 1352 M 176 181 12 042 - 12042
Restricted cash - - - 587 - 587 - 587
inventories - 7176 1758 - - 8,934 - B934
Trade and other recewables 605 4,965 24,399 3,672 1765 35 406 - 35 406
Totat assets 12,694 188567 350,920 21,933 127648 584882 - 5B&882
Total Liabilities (57951 [35087) {29197 (4 272) (632} (74983} - [74983)
Non cash expense [other than
depreciation and impairment] 2133 1157 1,317 - - 4 607 - 4,607
Exceptional item - accelerated
deprectation of Ukrainian Oil
and Gas Assets - 30723 - - - 39,723 - an723
Exceptional item - provision for
impairment of Hungarian oil
and gas assets - - - 15093 - 15093 - 15,093
Write off of exploration
and evaluation costs - 3447 - 1418 (181) 4,884 - 4 8B4
Increase in property plant and
equipment and tntangible assets 319 22 844 40 591 1,851 1713 67,318 - 7318
Depreciation, depletion
and amartisation 466 47 460 274 14695 1188 53 720 - 53720
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2011 UK Ukraine Russia Hungary Resi of world Sub Total Eltnuinations Totat
$000 $000 3000 $000 $oo0 $000 $060 $000
External revenue
Revenue by location of asset
- 0Od - 80 G20 - 1,508 - 81,508 - 81508
- Gas - 133,288 - 9.779 - 143067 - 143,067
- biguehied petroleum gas - 10 881 - - - 10881 10 881
- Management services/other 132 1 266 - - - 1,398 - 1398
132 225435 - 11 287 - 236854 - 236854
Inter segment revenue
- Management services/other 17,260 - - - - 17260 (17 260] -
- Equipment 11338 - - - 3907 15245  115,249) -
28598 - - - 3907 32505 132 505) -
Total revenue 28,730 225,435 - 11,287 3,907 269,359 32 508) 236,854
Profit before tax
{Loss)/profit from operations [9,465) 106 632 (3,745 (3,579} [6 240] 83 603 (1,989 82014
Finance income 915 - 915
Finance cost (852) - [852)
83 646 (1,589 82,077
Assets
Property plant and equipment 1,599 226,667 246,238 20,937 3393 498834 - 498834
Intangible assets - 4119 - 12,916 6,511 23,846 - 23B46
Other recewvable - - 24 238 - - 24738 - 24238
Deferred tax 3828 1,634 796 54 - 13432 - 13,432
Cash and cask equivalents 5406 3,354 5953 15 4392 19,122 - 19122
Restricted cash 2,504 - - 273 - 9717 - 9,777
Inventories - 3392 278 - - 3,670 3670
Trade end other recevables 2,889 4,044 679 B D14 (264} 21,404 27 404
Total assets 23226 26312 291342 42,211 14032 614,023 - 614023
Tota!l liabilitres 143157)  (28,482) (22780} [11007) f1,8221 {107,248) ~ {107 248}
Non cash expense [other than
depreciation and impairment] 1569 403 - - 176 2148 - 2,148
Impairment of oil and gas assets/
write off of exploration costs - - - 6,704 6216 12920 - 12,920
Increase in property piant and
equipment and intangible assets 1924 41447 103,428 12,382 2819 162000 - 162000
Deprectation, depletion
and amortisation 618 29 632 56 3,938 83 34327 - 34327
2012 201
Major customers $009 $000
t Ukramne 92,294 87,999
2 Ukraine - 46878

There 15 112011 2} customer in the Ukraine that exceeds 10% of the Group s total revenues
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5 (al Property, plant and equipment

Oil and gas assels

QOther
2012 Oil and Ol and property
gas hields Gas freld gas fields plant and
Ukraine Russia Hungary  equipment Total
$000 $000 $000 $c0D $000
GROUP ’
Cost
At 1 January 457430 321,688 31,499 18499  B29 116
Additions during the year* 20,413 40591 1,112 1598 63,714
Foreign exchange equity adjustment - 15,808 - 66 15,874
Disposal of property plant and equipment - - - (110 110]
Reclassification 1410 - [134) - 1,276
A1 31 December 479253 378,087 32477 200593 909.870
Accumulated depreciatron, depletion
and amortisation and provision for impairment
At 1 January 230,763 75 450 10,562 13,507 330 282
Depreciztion on disposals of property, plant and equipment - - - [+00) (1c0)
Exceptional tem - accelerated depreciation of
Ukratruan ol and gas assets 30,723 - - - 30,723
Exceptional item - Impairment of
Hungarian assets [see note 5ld] - - 15092 - 15093
Foreign exchange equity adjustment - 256 - 21 277
Depreciation charge for the year 47 460 2741 1,695 1824 53720
At 31 December 308 946 78,447 27,350 15252 429,995
Carrying amount
At 1 January 226 667 246,238 20,937 4992 498834
At 31 December Y70 307 299 640 5127 480v 479875

" Finante costs that have been capiiatised within ol and gas properties duning the year totad $2 5m 2011 $3 2 % a weighted average interest rate of 25 2 per

cent[2011 25 2 percent)

Ol and gas felds in Ukraine and Russia include $9 1m and mil respectively relating to itemns under construction

{2017 $14 3m and $24% 2m)

Exceptional item - accelerated depreciation of Ukrainian oil and gas assets

Following the change in the Group s ol and gas reserves at the Novo- Nikolaevskoye Complex on 31 December
2011, and subsequent revision to future production ptans from those fields during 2012, there was a
reassessment of the expected future economic benefit from the Comnplex s ol and gas assets in Ukraine As a
result certain oll and gas assets have become obsolete and therefore their carrying value has been written ofi
A one-off accelerated depreciation charge of $30 7m has been recogrised In the consolidaled income statement

during the year in respect of these oil and gas assets
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Oil and gas assets

Other
201 Ol and Oil and property
gaslields Gasdield gas fields plant and
Ukraine Russia Hungary  equipment Total
$000 $000 $000 %000 $000
GROUP
Cost
At 1 January 416,654 236,992 29,688 17,123 700,457
Addittons during the year® 40776 103,428 1,811 2559 148,574
Foreign exchange equity adsustment - (18 732} - (28] {18 760]
Disposal of property plant and equspment - - - {1 155) [1,158)
At 31 December 457,430 321,488 31 499 18499  B22,116
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and
amortisation and provision for impairment
At 1 January 202 353 75 450 & 624 12488 297115
Depieciation on disposals of property plant and equipment - - - 11148 13 148)
Foreign exchange equity adjustment - - - {12 (12)
Depreciation charge for the year 28,410 - 3,938 197% 34327
At 31 December 230763 75,450 10 562 13507 330282
Carrying amount
At 1 Januvary 21430 161 542 23,064 4435 403342

At 31 December 226,667 2461238 20 937 4992 498834
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5. Ib] Intangible assets expleration and evaluation expenditure

Rest of

2012 Ukraine Hungary world Total

$000 $000 $000 $000
Cost
At 1 January 5,427 12,916 12,866 31,209
Additiens during the year 2,431 739 434 3,604
Write off of unsuccessful exploration and evaluation cosis 13,647) 1,418) 181 {4,884)
Effect of exchange rates on intangible assets - - 147 147
Rectassification [1410] 134 - [1276]
At 31 December 2,80 12371 13 428 28 800
Provision against oll and gas assets
At 1 January and 31 December 1308 - 6,355 7 663
Carrying amount
At 1 January 4119 12916 651 23546
At 31 December 1493 12,371 7273 21,137

The amounts for intangible exploration and appraisal assets represent costs incurred on active exploration and
appraisal projects

The write off of exploration and evaluation costs comprises exploration and driling costs of $3 6m (2011 nil)in
respect of the M-172 well in Ukraine, $1 2m of drilling costs {2011 nil} in respect of the Pely-2well in Hungary,
exploration costs of $0 2m (2011 $6 7m} in respect of our Turkeve beence in Hungary and $0 2m (2011 nit) i
respect of cost recoveries against Bulganan exploration costs previously written off

The total write off of unsuccessful exploration and evaluation costs of $4 9m (2011 $12 9m) has been recognised in
Cost of sales

201t Ukrame Hungary R:ilr:)ur Totat
$000 $000 $000 $000

Cost

At 1 January 4,756 9049 17,229 31034

Additions during the year 671 10,571 2184 13426

Write off of unsuecessful exploration costs - (6 704) 6216} {12,920

Efiect of exchange rates on intangible assets - - (331) 1331)

At 31 December 5.427 12916 12 864 31,209

Provision against oil and gas assets

At 1 January and 31 December 1308 - 6,355 7.663

Carrying amount

At 1 January 3,448 9049 10,874 23,371

At 31 December 4117 12 916 6,511 23,584
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5 (c] Impairment test for Property, plant and equipment

A review was undertaken at the reporting date of the carrying amounts of property, ptani and equipment to
determmine whether there was any indication of a trigger that may have led to these assets suffering an iImpairment
loss In 2012 indicators of impairment were noted in respect of sur Hunganan assets [see note 5 (d]] No other
impairment triggers were noied and no other impairment charges have been recognised

Following this review in 2011 impairment triggers were noted in relation to Yuzhgazenergie [YGE) 1n Russia
See note 5(d} for the results of the 2011 YGE impairment test and constderatton of the carrying value at
31 December 2012

5 (d) Exceptional item - impairment of Hungarian oil and gas assets

HHE North Kft {HHN), Hungary
During 2012, two of our producing Hunganan wells experienced an unexpected decline in production rates

= well Gh-1watered out and following a review with our partner there are currently no plans to attempt to
rectify this

= well Hn-2 watered out but following remediation work this well has been restarted at lower production rates than
previously experienced

We have reduced our future production forecasts and reserves in respect of these two wells which the Company
considered constituted an tmpawrment trigger and a full impairment test has been undertaken 1n respeci of our
Hungarian oil and gas assets

The test compared the recoverable amount of the Hernad field Cash Generating Unit {CGU] which contains these
two wells and which 1s held by HHE North Kit HHN) the subsidiary which holds our Hungarian assets, to the
carrying value of the CGU The estimate of recoverable amount was based on fair value less costs 1o sell, derved by
estimating discounted after tax cash flows for the CGU based on estimates that a typical markat participant would
use In valuing such assels In accordance with IAS 36, the impairment review has been undertaken 1n US$ being
the functional currency of our Hungarran operations

The key assumptions used in the imparrment tesling were

« Production proliles these were based on the latest available information provided by our reserve engineers
based on reserve information from the operator and external engineers, such information including 2P reserves
[0 2 MMboe), 3P and contingent resources

* Od and gas prices these were based on current prices being realised and short term price curves derived from
expectations in the Hungarian oil and gas market

» Capital and operating costs these were hased on project eshimates provided by third parties and the partner and
operator of our Hunganan assets

No value was attributed to 3P and contingent resources The post 1ax discount rate of 10% was applied This was
based ona Capial Asset Pricing Model analysts for our Hungarian assets Accordingly the mpairment test 1s
dependent upon judgment used in determining such assumptions

The changes in the key assumptions used from previous periods has resulted in the o1l and gas assets being
imparred by $15 1m The Group has recognised the impairment charge within Cost of sales The associated net tax
effect on the exceptional charge 15 a delerred tax credit lo the income statement of $4 8m
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The impact on the iImpairment calculation of applying different assumptions to production ot and gas prices and
capital and operating expenditure would be as follows

IDecreasel/increase toimpairment loss for HKN CGU

$m

Impact if el and gas production increased by 10% 07
Decreased by 10% D8
Impact if oil and gas prices Increased by 10% 07}
Decreased by 10% 08
impact if future capital and operating costs Increased by 10% 04
Decreased by 10% 03}

Yuzhgazenergie [YGE], Russia - 2011 disclosures

Following the 2007 acquisition of YGE in Russia, a technical and environmental re-evaluation of YGE s
Koshekhablskoye gas field redevelopment was undertaken by the Group The re-evatuation resulted in a revised
development plan and production profile The development plan and production profile have continued to be refined
since that time

The anticipated coslt of the development plan has continued to increase in 2611 and although first gas sales from
the project are imminent they are delayed from when originally planned and from the assumptions used for the
2010 impairment review

In 2011 the antictpated convergence of Adygean gas prices to net back European levels was forecast to be later than
assumed in the prior year s impatrment review Historically gas prices in the Adygea Region are higher than the
average gas price across all regions in Russia

In 2011 the Company constdered that the delay to production start-up and the resulling additional capital
expenditure incurred to constitute an impairment trigger Accordingty an impairment test was undertaken in 2011

The test compared the recoverable arnount of the Cash Generating Urit [CGUY, being YGE for the purpose of the
review to the carrying value of the CGU

The estimate of recoverable amount was based on iair value less costs to self, using a discounted cash flow [DCF)
methodology The DCF was derved by estimating discounted after tax cash ftows for the CGU based on estimates
that a typical market participant would use 1n valuing such assets In accordance with 1AS 34, the impairment review
was been undertaken in Russtan Roubles

Key assumptions - Russia - 2011 disclosures
The key assumptions used in the 2011 impairment testing were

= Production profiles these were based on the latest availabte information provided by independent reserve
engineers Senergy [GB) Limited, such information included 2P reserves of 61 2 MMboe No value was attributed
to the unconfirmed expectations of the 3P and contingent resources which may be relevant to any valuation by a
market participant

Economic life of field 1t was assumed that YGE will be successful in extending the licence term beyond its current
2026 expiration to the econormc life of the feld {expected to be around 2059 The discounted cash flow
methodology used has not taken account of any opportunities that may exist to extract reserves in a shorter
timelrame by investing 1o increase the current plant capacity

Gas prices for 2012 these were based on the gas sales agreement that the Company had negotiated with
Kubangazihikatziya for the forecast gas production in 2012

Gas prices ior 2013 and thereafter the gas price increases were based on Russian regional gas market price
expectations and the Russian government s stated intention to achieve net-back convergence with the European
gas markets The principle of achieving Eurepean nei-back parity is the driver of regulatory price change in
Russia and it was originally anticipated that this would be achieved by 2011, later revised to 2015 and
subsequently 2017 Due to the recent sustained period of high international o1l prices and hence high European
gas prices 1t 1s now unlikely lo achieve parity in this time-frame The Company assumed net-back convergence
occurring in 2020 and applied the Russian government s stated intention to increase gas sector tariffs by 15% on 1
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July 2012 and by 15% per annum in 2013 and 2014 to calculate expected future Russian gas prices in those years
and by 15% therealter to achieve European net-back convergence in 2020 This timing of convergence s
consistent with current views expressed by many market commentators

+ Gas prices the gas price was assumed to increase In line with foerecast Rouble inflation after 2020 consistent with
operating cash flow assumptions

= Capital and operating costs these were based on current operating and capttal costs in Russia, project estimates
provided by third parties and supported by estimates from our own specialists, where necessary

» Post tax nominal Rouble discount rate of 13 0% This was based on a Capitat Asset Pricing Model analysis
consistent with that used In previous iImpairment reviews

Based on the key assumptions set out above YGE s recoverahle amount exceeds its carrying value by $35m 1n 2011
In 2017 1t was concluded that YGE s Koshekhablskoye gas field was not impaired

Any impairment 1s dependent on judgement used in determining the most appropriate basis for the assumptions
and estimates made by management particularly i relation to the key assumptions described above Sensitivity
analysis to likely and potential changes in key assumptions has therefore been reviewed below

The impact on the 2011 impairment calculation of applying different assumptions Lo gas prices preduction, future
capital expenditure and post-tax discount rates, atl other inputs remaining equal, would be as follows

2011 sensitivity analysis

Increase/[decreasel in impairment
headroem of $35m for Yuzhgazenergie CGU

m

Impact If Adygean gas price trcreased by 16% 55
Growth raie (s reduced o 10% annually post 2014

through te European net-back in 2021 {64)

impact 1f production volumes Increased by 10% 51

Decreased by 10% (51

impact if future capital expenditure Increased by 10% 17)

Cecreased by 10% 7

Impact # post-tax discount rate Increased by 1% to 14% (23]

Decreased by 1% to 12% 25

2012 update

For purposes of testing for impairment of YGE s non-current assets in 2012 we have adopted & similar process te
that used in previous periods Having taken account of developments since the last test for impairment, based on
the assessment of fair value less costs to setl, the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying value by approximately
US$29m (9 1 per cent] (2011 $35m, 12 4 per cent} and no impairment trigger has been noted However it shoutd be
noted that the estimate of the recoverable amount uses a discounted cash flow [DCF] methodology which 1s highly
sensitive to changes in the key assymptions of future Russian gas prices and related production taxes, both of which
are under the direct control ¢f the Russian government

As in previous estimates the Company has assurmed net-back convergence with European gas prices occurring

in 2020 after applying the Russian government s stated intention {0 increase gas sector tanffs annually by 15% on

1 July 2013 and through 2015 and by a lower increment in the years thereafter 1o achieve European net-back price
convergence The Company s estimates also reflect the Russtan government s recent confirmation of gas production
tax rates through to 2015 and an inflationary increase has been applied thereaiter

& Other receivable

Non-current other recewable consisis of VAT recoverable as a resull of expenditures incurred in Russta

A portron of the recevables are now expecled to be recovered within one year (2011 between two and five years)
following production and sales of oil, gas and condensate from YGE s Koshekhablskoye gas field and have therefore
been classified as Current assets 1n 2012 [see note 9)
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7 Investments
The net book value of unlisted investments comprises

2012 2011
5000 $000
Cost
At 1 January and 31 December 5,617 5617
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January and 31 December 5,617 5617

Carrying amount

At 31 December - -

Full provision was made against investments i 2007 which comprise an investment i a Ukrainian ol and gas
company At the end of 2007 there were no clear development plans relating to the investment and this continues to
be the position at 31 December 2012 The investment reflects a 10% holding of the Company s ordinary share
capital

8 Inventories

2012 2011
$000 $000
Warehouse inventory and materials 1,758 1182
Ol and gas wnventory 7,176 2 487
8,934 3649

9 Trade and other receivables
2012 2011
$060 $000
Trade recewvables 3,680 6714
Other recewvables 2,984 4 745
VAT recewable 26,214 7.314
Prepayments 2,528 2,632

35,406 21,405

As of 31 December 2012, there were no trade recevables which were impaired [2011 nil] At this date there were no
trade recevables past due (2011 nil}

Included within Other recewvables 1s an amount of $2 8m {2011 $3 4m) relating to the Group s share of a recewable
of HHE North Kit [HHN] that 1s unsecured bears interest based on LIBOR plus a mark up and s expected to be
repaid within 12 months of the reporting date

The Group s Russian subsidiary had total VAT recewvable of $30 6m (2011 $29 7m] as of the reporting date of which
$24 4m (2011 $5 5m) has been classitied as a current receivable as recovery 1s expected within 12 months of the
reporting date The remaining recewvable of $6 2 (2011 $24 2m} has been classified as non-current

There Is no difference between the carrying value of trade and other recewables and their fairvalue
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The carrying amounts of the Group s trade and other recevables are deneminated in the fellowing currencies

2012 201

$000 $000
US Dollar 2,773 5418
Sterling 592 575
Euros 2,671 5,744
Hunganan Forinis 22 12
Ukrainian Hryvnia 4,945 3,649
Russian Roubles 24,383 6,007

35,406 21,405

10 Cash and cash equivalents
2012 201

$000 $000
Cash 11,004 17817
Short term deposits 1,038 1305
Cash and cash equivalents 12,042 19122
Restricted cash 587 2777
Total 12,629 28899

Short term deposits comprise amounts which are held on deposit, but are readity convertible to cash

Restricted cash
Restricted cash comprises two elements

e pursuant to the pre-paid swap transaction {see note 12], the Group held $nit (2011 $9 5mlin an account at
Barclays Bank PLC, which 1s treated as restricted cash as this account was not under the exclusive control of the
Group and the Group does not have immediate direct access to the funds,

* 50 6m [2011 $0 3m) of the cash held in Hungary at K & H Bank Zrl was restricted as under the Hungarian Mining
Act the Group 1s required to deposit cash to cover compensation fer any land damage and the costs of
recultivation, including environmental damage of the waste management facilities
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11 Trade and other payables

2012 2011

$000 $000

Trade payabtes 18,390 18,329
Other payables 4,393 8,541
Other taxes and social security costs 1,580 1,246
VAT payable 1,655 3789
Accruals 7,207 12 604

33,225 44 509

Included within other payables 1s an amount of $2 9m (2011 $4 Om) relating Lo the Group s share of a payable of
HHE North Kit [HHN] that 1s unsecured, bears interest based on LIBOR plus a mark up and ts expected to be repaid
within 12 months of the reporting date

12 Borrowings

2012 201t
$000 $000

Current

Pre-paid swap - 35930

Credit facility 14,951 -

Term-loans repayabte within one year 14,951 35,930

Pre-paid swap

The Pre-patd swap related to a term loan which the Group enlered into on 14 June 2011 wath Credit Suisse
international The transaction which secured $50m lor capital expenditure and other purposes is repayable over an
18 month schedule commencing in September 2011, concluding with a final payment in November 2012 There was
a zero coupon rale on the outstanding balance however under the transaction the Group hedged forward sales of oit
{see note 13]

The pre-paid swap was secured over the shares of all those Group subsidiaries which own control or have an
interest 1n the Group s o and gas licences

All obhgations under the pre-paid swap concluded with a final payment to Credit Suisse in Decernber 2612

Credit facility

On 31 March 2011 Poltava Petroleurn Company [PPC), our substdiary m Ukraine, entered into a reducing credit
faciity agreement with Credit Agricole CIB [France) secured by indermmity provided by the parenl company, JKX Qil &
Gas plc The credst facility 1s for a maximum of Ukraimian Hryvnia equivalent of $15 0m The facility was renewed on
26 Apnl 2012 and 15 available until 30 June 2013 (2011 30 June 2012} All provisions contained in the credit facility
documentation have been negotiated on normal cornmercial and customnary terms for such hinance arrangements
The interest is calculated at prevalling Credit Agricole CIB [France) bank rate plus a margin

13 Dervative Labidity

2012 2011
$000 $000

Current ‘

Derwative financial instruments - 3,169

Total - 3169
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Pre-paid swap

The pre-paid swap transaction with Credit Suisse International was struciured to enable its repayment by the Group
from future sales of o1l Under this structure, the Group sold forward 36,000 bbl/month of crude at $%4 00 Urals Med
per barret while retaining value if prices rise above $130 per bbl

The Urals Med index was the ctosest international benchmark for the range of ol and gas produced by the Group
and delivered in local markets The volume allocated represented approxsmately 10% of the Group s current daily
production on a barrel of oil eguivalent basis

As the amount of consideration payable to Credit Suisse Internationat changed in response lo the change In the
Urals Med index and was being settled in the future, the payable was treated as a derwvative liability For the purpose
of hedge accounting the ot price hedge {forward sate] entered into during the period was classified as cash flow
hedge The gains and losses taken 1o equity that were transierred to the consclidated income statement during the
pertod were $2 9m (2011 $1 1m)

All obligations under the pre-paid swap concluded with a finat payment to Credit Suisse in Becember 2012

14 Financial instruments

Fair values of financial assets and financial Liabitities - Group

Set out below 1s a cornparisen by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group s financial instruments
Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged v an arm s length transaction Where
availabte market values have been used [this excludes short term assets and Liabilities)

Book and Fair Value

2012 2011
$000 $000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents {note 10] 12,629 28899
Trade recevables [note 9} - classified as loans and recevables 3,680 6,714
Other recevables [note 9} - classified as loans and recewvables 2,984 4,745
Financial trabilities
Trade payables [note 11) - carried at amortised cost 18,390 18,329
Other payables [note 11] - carried at amortised cost 4,393 8541
Borrowings - Credit facility [note 12) 14,951 -
Borrowings - Pre-paid swap [note 12] - 35930

Loans and receivables comprise trade and other recevables of $6 7m (2011 $11 5m} Financial Liabilities measured
at amortised cost are carried at $37 7m (2011 $62 8rn} The Group s borrowings at 31 December 2012 relate entirely
to the credit facility provided to PPC the Ukrainian subsidiary

in the statement of financial position at 31 December 2011 the Group s derwative financial instrument [the forward
sale of 36,000 bbi/manth of crude [see note 13]] was recerded at 1ts fair value and was setiled on a monthly basis
through to December 2012 The value of the derivative was calculated by reference to forward market prices at the
reporting date compared with the contract price As it was denved irom inpuls other than quoted prices in active
markets that are observable, ether directly [l e as prices) or indirectly [1 e derwved from prices] it was been grouped
into Level 2 within the fair value measurement hierarchy Categorisation within the fair value measurement
hierarchy was determined on the basis of the fowest level input that 1s significant to its fair value measurement

Credit risk - Group

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products are made to customers with appropriate credit
worthiness Where appropriale, the use of prepayment for product sales limits the exposure to credit risk There s
no difference between the carrying amount of trade and other recewables and the maximum credit risk exposure
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Capital management - Group

The Group s policy as to the level of equity capital and reserves is to ensure that it marntains a strong financial
position and low gearing ratio which provides financial flexibility to continue as a going concern and to maximise
shareholder value The capital structure of the Group consists of shareholders equity excluding the hedge reserve
together with the net debt

Net debt comprises borrowtngs disclosed in note 12 and total cash in note 10 Equity atiributable to the
shareholders of the Company compnises 1ssued capital capital reserves retained profits, excluding the hedge
reserve (see Consolidated statement of changes in equity)

The capital structure of the Group 15 25 follows

2012 201
$000 $000
Borrowings [note 12) 14,9511 (35 930i
Total cash [note 10] 12,629 28 899
Net debt (2,322} {7 031)
Total shareholders equity, excluding hedge reserve 511,899 503 903

Following the issue of $40m of convertible bonds 1n February 2013 the primary capital risk 1o the Group 1s the level
of indebtedness The convertible bond includes a financiat covenant which Lirmits the Group s iIndebtedness
(excluding the bonds themselves and the $15 Om Crecit Agricole facility] in respect of any new borrowings [in
addttion to the bond amount) to three times 12-month free cash flow based on the most recently published
conselidated financial statements

Liquidity risk - Group

The treasury function s responsibie for liquidity, funding and settiement management under policies approved
by the Board of Directors Liguidity needs are monitored using regular forecasting of operational cash flows and
financing cornmstments The Group maintains a mixture of cash and cash equivalents and committed facilities in
order to ensure sufficient funding for business requirements

The following tables set out details of the expected contractual maturity of non-dervative financial Liabilities
The tables include both interest and principal cash flows on an undiscounied basis To the exient that interest flows
are floating rale, the undiscounted amount 1s derved from interest rate curves at the reporting date

within 3months Less
3monihs Iyear  than1year
Group - 31 December 2012 $00C $000 $000
Maturity of financial babilities
Trade payables [note 11) 18,370 - -
Other payables [note 11) 4393 - -
Borrowings - Credit facality - 14 951 -
Group - 31 December 2011
Maturity of financial Labilities
Trade payables [note 11] 18329 - -
Other payables [note 11} 8 b4l - -

Borrowings - Pre-paid swap 10 Q00 36500 -
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Interest rate risk profile of financiat assets and liabilities - Group

The Group 1s exposed to interest rate risk principally i relation to the batance outstanding enthe credit facility with
Credit Agricole CIB [Francel where interest 1s calculated at prevailing Credit Agricole CIB [France) bank rate plus a
margin The interest rate profile of the financial asseis and habilities of the Group as at 31 December s as follows
[excluding short-term assets and liabilittes, non-iterest bearmng)

Within 1 Year
$000
Group - Year ended 31 December 2012
Floating rate
Short term deposits Inote 10) 1,038
Other receivables [note 9) 2,984
Other payables [note 11] [4,393)
Group - Year ended 31 December 2011
Fleating rate
Short term deposits [note 10] 1305
Other recewvables inote %) 4,745
Other payables [note 11 18 541}

Floating rate financiat assets comprise cash deposits placed on money markets at call seven day and monthly
rates

Interest rate sensitivity - Group
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates on our short term
deposits at the reporting date There were no interest bearing loans at the reporting date

If interest rates had been 1 per cent higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group s profit after
tax and net assets for the year ended 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by $67.000 [2011 profit after tax
and net assets for the year would increase/decrease by $11 000) 1 per cent 1s the sensitivity rate used as it best
represents management s assessment of the possible change in interest rates that could apply to the Group

Foreign currency exposures — Group

The table below shows the extent to which the Group has menetary assets and liabilities i currencies other than
the functional currency of the operating company involved These exposures give rise to the net currency gains and
losses recognised In the mcome statement

As at 31 December the [iability}fasset foreign currency exposures were

2012 201

$000 $000
US Dollar 72 (3,816)
Sterling [1,890) (2831)
Euros 846 (709]
Hungarian Forints 433 313
Ukrainian Hryvnia 77 234
Bulgarian Leva 17 2412
Russian Roubles 33 145

Total net 1392) (4 052]
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Foreign currency sensitivity - Group

The Group 1s mainly exposed te the currency fluctuations of Ukraine [Hryvnial, Russio [Rouble} and UK (Sterling)
The sensitvity analysis principaliy anses on money market deposits and working capital iterns held at the reporting
date

The following table details the Group s sensitivity to a 10 per cent increase and decrease 1n the US Dollar against the
stated currencies and all other varables were held conslant 10 per cent 1s the sensitmty rate that best represents
management s assessment of the possible change in the foreign exchange rates affecting the Group A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit and equity when the US Dollar weakens agaimst the relevant currency
For a strengthening of the US Dollar against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposte impact on
the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be negative

Hryvma Rouble Sterling
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Profit/loss for the year and equity
0 per cent strengthening of the US Dollar 139) 21 (3) 13) 172 257
10 per cent weakening of the US Dollar 39 21 3 13 (72 1257)

Commodrity Risk - Group
The Group i1s exposed to the effect of fluctuations in oil, gas and condensate prices and the risks relating to their
fluctuation in are discussed on page 42 together with the discussion of financial risk factors

Commeodity Sensitivity - Group

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the exposure to ot prices for sutstanding monetary items at the

31 December 2011 as it comprised the pre-paid swap iransaction with Credit Swisse International, which was an
effective cash flow hedge

15 Share capital
Equity share capital, denominated in Sterting, was as follows

2012 2012 2012 2011 201 2011

Numbaer £0¢o $000 Number £000 $000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 10p each 300,000,000 30,000 300,000,000 30000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Opering balance of 1 January 172,070,477 17,207 26,657 172,020,477 17202 26,649
Exercise of share options - - - 50,000 5 8
Closing balance at 31 December 172,070,477 17,207 256,657 172,070,477 17,207 26,657
Of which the following are shares held in treasury
Treasury shares held at 1 January and 31 December 402,771 40 77 £02,1M 40 77

The Company did not purchase any treasury shares during 2012 (2011 none) and no treasury shares were used In
2012 (2011 none) to settte share options There are no shares reserved for 15sue under options or contracts As at
31 Dacember 2012 the market value of the treasury shares held was $0 5m {2011 $0 8m)

16 Other reserves

Share premium represents the amounis received by the Company on the 1ssue of iis shares which were in excess
of the nominal vatue of the shares
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Merger reserve was created on 30 May 1995 when JKX Gl & Gas plc acquired the 1ssued share capital of JP Kenny
Exploration & Production Limited for the i1ssue of ordinary shares and represents the difference between the tair

value of consideration given for the shares and the nominal value of those instruments

Capital redemption reserve relates to the buyback of shares in 2002, there have been no addittonal share buy-backs

since this time

Equity share options reserve relates to the fair value of the share options that have been expensed through the
income statement since adoption of IFRS less amounts, If any, that have been transferred to the retatned earnings

upon exercise

Foreign currency translation reserve includes movements that relate to the retranslation of the subsidiaries whose

functional currencies are not the US Dollar

Hedge reserve arose as a result of recognising the fair value of derivative financial instruments designated as

hedging instruments on the staternent of financial position

Retained earnings represent the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive

income less any amounts reflected directly in other reserves

17 Provisions

Ukra:ne Russia Hungary Total

Provision for site restoration 2012 2012 2012 2012

$000 $000 2000 $000

At 1 January 1.483 1,507 455 3,445

Revision to estimate (94) - - {94)
Foreign exchange adjustment - (157 27 (1301 -

Wells restored (78} - - (78]

Unwinding of discount [nate 20) 67 210 - 277

At 31 December 1,378 1 560 482 3,620

The provisien in respect of Ukraine represents the present value of the well and site restoration costs that are
expected to be incurred up to 2024 (2011 2024) The Russta provision results from the decommuissioning of 12 wells
[2011 12) and removal of ptant as required by the licence abligation Dacommissioning 1s due to take place frem
2014 to 2055 [2011 2014 to 2060} The provisions are made using the Group s internal estimates thal management

believe form a reascnable basis for the expected future costs of decommussioning

18 Cost of sales

2012 2011
$000 $000
Operating costs 24,928 17,226
Depreciation depletton and amortisation 51,895 32,347
Production based taxes 47,353 67102
126,176 116675

Exceptional item ~ provision for impairment of Hunganan oil and gas assets
[notes 5{a) and 5id]} 15,093 -
Write off of exploration and appraisal cosis [note 5 (bl 4,884 12520
Exceptional item - accelerated depreciation [note 5 [al} 30,723 -
174,876 129,595

The cost of inventories [calculated by reference to production costs) expensed in cost of sales in 2012 was $120 7m

{2011 $1153m)
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19 Finance iIncome

2012 2011

$000 $000
Iinterest income on deposits 105 506
Other 495 409

600 15
20, Finance costs

2012 2011

$000 $060
Bank interest payable 1,874 512
Borrowing costs amortisation and fees 5,100 3206
Unwinding of discount on stte restoration [note 17) 277 340

7,251 4058
Less finance costs capitalised at 25 2%* (2,503] (3 208)
4,748 852

* Tax retie! on capitabised interestis $0 6m (2011 $0 Bm)
21 Profit fram operations - analysis of costs by nature
Profit from operations derives solely from continuing operations and 1s stated after charging the following

2012 20m

$o000 $000
Depreciation - other assets 1,824 1,979
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation - oil and gas assets 51,896 32348
Staff costs (net of $3 9m {2011 $6 4m) capitatised note 23 25,326 21,808
Foreign exchange {oss/(gain) 1,290 1460)
Operating lease payments
- property lease rentals 1,572 143%
- plant and equipment 676 621

During the year the Group lincluding its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Group s

auditors as detailed below

M2 2019
Group auditors’ remuneration $000 $060
Audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 235 239
Fees payable to company s auditor for other services
- Audt of the Company s subsidiaries 160 213
- Audit related assurance services 108 10
- Other assurance services 13 -
- Taxation advisory services 55 354
- Other non-audit services 3 5

sS71 921
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22 Obligations under leases
At the reporting date the Group s aggregate future minimum commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
are as follows

2012 201

$000 $000

Within one year 709 165
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,251 2085
After five years 2,13 1994
5,091 4 244

Operating tease primanly relate to rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises and staff
accemmodation

23 Staff costs

2012 20m

$000 $000
Wages and salarnies 22,834 22768
UK soceal security costs 814 584
Penston contributions 3,535 3297
Share based payments (equity-settled) {note 24] 2,029 1569

29,214 28218

Staff costs are shown gross and $3 9m (2011 $4 4m) was capitalised, representing time spent on exploration and
development activities

Buring the year, the average menthly number of employees was

2012 2011
Management/operational 845 769
Adrmimistration support GL 52
909 821

Included within management/operational are 4 (2011 5] Directors on service contracts Further details of the
Directors and their remuneration 1s included on pages 92 to 107 which form part of these financial statements

24 Share-based payments

Share options

Share oplions are granted to Executive Directors and senior management based on performance criteria The
scheme rules are described in the Directors Remuneratien Report and repeated below All share-based payments
are equity settled

Al 31 Decemnber 2012, there were outstanding options under various employee share option schemes, exercisable
during the years 2013 to 2022 [2011 2012 to 2021), to acquire 3,499,863 (2011 2 759,824] shares of the Company at
prices ranging from £0 00 to £3 15 per share (2011 £0 00 to £4 54) The vesting period for 3,444,424 of the share
options 1s 3 years with an exercise period of 7 years making a 10 year maximum term For 55 439 of the share
optiens granted to Executive Directors in January 2012 in beu of their bonus the vesting period was 1 25 years with
an exercise period of 8 75 years making a 10 year maximum term
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The following table illustrates the number and weighted average prices [WAEP] of and movements in share options
during the year

2012 2012 70m 201t

Number WAEP Number WAEP

Outstanding as at 1 January 2,759,824 19432p 2593724 211 63p
Granted during the year 1,999,620 B8 &7p 887 800 204 33p
Surrenderedflapsed during the year {1,259,481) 212 2%p 1671 700) 277 60p
Exercised during the year® - - (50,000 151 50p
Outstanding at 31 December 3,499,863 11037  2,759.824 194 32p
Exercisable at 31 December 241,624 122 97 297 924 128 38p

* Weighted average market price a1 exercise N/A 2011 291 7p}

For the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2012, the weighted average remaining contractuat Ufe 1s
8 2years (2011 7 7 years)

Durtng the year share options were granted in accordance with the share option schemes the Discretionary Share
Option Scheme [ DSOS } and the Performance Share Plan [ PSP ), which were introduced in 2118 They reflect the
besi practice aspects recomrmended by the Association of British Insurers following the publication of their
guidelines in March 2001 [the ABI Guidelines)

2012 Share Option Schemes

DSOS

The DSQS 1s made up of two parts Options to acguire ordinary shares in the Company granted under Part A are
Approved Options and options to acquire Shares granted under Part B of the DSOS are Unapproved Options
No consideration shall be payable for the grant of an Option

1,188 400 (2011 575,900} options were granied under DS05 1n 2012 The weighted average exercise price of options
granted under DSOS 1s 9%p (2011 315p] For these options to vest there has to be an increase inthe Group s
Earnings Per Share [ EPS | growth over the performance period measured over the 3 consecutve calendar years
commencing fram the date the options were granted The weighted average fair value of options granted during the
year under the DSOS was 26 8p per option (2011 159 4p)

PSP

PSP are granted solely to Executive Directors Subject to shareholder approval at the AGM Executive Directors will
recewve awards under the 2010 Performance Share Plan in the form of nil cost options No consideration 1s required
to be paid for the grant or exercise of an Opticn

810,920 (2011 311,900) options were granted under PSP 1n 2012 The PSP options provide a conditional right 1o
acquire shares at nit cost subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions and continued employment with
the Group For these options o vest a comparison 1s performed between the Group s TSR against the FTSE 250
index [half the options) and the All-Share 01l & Gas Producers index [other half of options) The weighted average
fair value of options granted during the year under the PSP was 55 5p per aption {2011 184 3p)

Pre 2012 Share Option Schemes

In 2009 share opltons were granied 1n accordance with The New Approved Share Option Scheme and the New
Unapproved Share Option Schemne [collectively the 2001 Share Option Schemes| that were introduced in 2001

They reflect the best practice aspects recommended by the Association of British Insurers following the publication
of their guidelines in March 2001 tthe ABI Guidelines )

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2009 under the New Approved Share Option Scheme and the
New Unapproved Share Option Scheme was 56 90p per option
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Fair value of share options granted

The fair value of options granted unger the DSOS 1s estimated as at the date of grant using avanance of the
Binomial model taking into account terms and condibions upon which the options are granted, which includes the
performance condition related to the Company s earmings per share directly No dvidends are paid on shares under
the scheme prior to exercise

The fair value oi ophions granied under the PSP 15 estimated as at the date of grant using a variant of the Monte
Carlo model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options are granted, which includes the
performance condition related to the TSR directly No dividends are paid on shares under the scheme prior to
exercise

The fair value of share options previously granted under the 2001 Share Option Schemes 1s estimaied as at the date
of grant using a variant of the standard binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options are granied which includes the performance condition related to the Company s share price directly
The perforrmance condition based on performance relative to other companies 1s modeled with a Monte Carlo
model

The total share based payment charge for the year was $2 0m (2011 $1 ém)

The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the eptions granted in the years ended 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011 The expecied fuiure volatility has been determined by reference to the historical volatility

2012 201 2012 201

Dsos DSOS PSP PSP
Dividend yield 3I7%-51% 16% 32%-37% 146%
Expected share price votatility 42%-43% 5% 35%-42% 65%
Risk free interest rate 06%-08% 19% 03%-0 &% 1 %%
Exercise price 97 5p-154 50p 31500p 000p 000p
Expected life of option |years] 390-410 340 128-300 300
Weighted average share price 108 87p 23993p 108 87p 239 93p

Bonus scheme

The performance criteria of the Directors and senior employees bonus payments inctudes a component that relates
directly to JKX s share performance over the vesting period and a component which relates to the performance of
JKX share price in relation to the FTSE 01l & Gas Preducers Index There was no benus accrued for 2012 in respect
of the share price performance component {2011 nil] in January 2012 the Executive Directors agreed to defer half
of their 2011 bonus earned into JKX shares The vesting period of these shares was 15 months to 31 March 2013 and
the amount of shares awarded was subject to claw back in the event that certain performance conditions relating to
the Koshekhablskoye gas held were not satisfied

The full details of the benus performance criteria and the bonus earned is explamed in the Remuneration Report on
pages 9210 107
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25 Taxation

2012 20M
Analysis of tax on profit $000 $000
Current tax
UK - current tax 1,520 -
Overseas - current year 17,336 21769
Current tax total 18,856 21 769
Deferred tax
UK 3,157 21
Overseas - current year 7,974) {1083
Overseas - prior year (1,083} 133
Deferred tax tatal (5,900) 117
Total taxation 12,956 22,940
Factors that affect the total tax charge
The total tax charge for the yaar of $13 0m {2011 $22 9m) s fagher (2011 hugher] than the average rate of UK
corporation tax of 24 5% [2011 26 5%) The differences are explained below

2012 201

Total tax recanciliation $000 $000
Profit before tax 1,621 82077
Tax calculated at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 397 21 750
Other fixed asset differences 162 179
Net change In unrecogrused losses carried forward (335) 2197
Other differences 1,098 806
Permanent foreign exchange differences 5,891 392
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (2,555) (2,958]
Other non-deductible expenses 2,751 2,446
Adjustments in 1espect of prior years 1,386 -
Recegnition of prior period losses [23) (24)
Total excluding impact of change 1n 1ax rates, tax losses of prior year not prewiously recognised 8,772 24783
and impairment and write down of fixed assets
Effect of changes in tax rates 4,184 (3.415}
Impan ment of oif and gas assets/write off of exploration costs - 1,567
Total tax charge 12,956 22,940

The current tax charged in the year mainly relates to Ukrainian corporation tax which has ansen in the Group
subsidiary, Poltava Petroleurn Company Taxes charged on production of hydrocarbons in Ukraine and Hungary are

included in cost of sales [note 18]
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Factors that may affect future tax charges
A significant proportion of the Group s iIncome will be generated overseas Profits made overseas will not be able to
be offset by costs elsewhere in the Group This could lead to a higher than expected tax rate for the Group

The UK Finance Act 2012 reduced the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnit 2012 and to 23%
from 1 April 2013 A jurther reduction to 21% from 1 Apnl 2014 was also announced but not subsiantively enacted
at the reporting date The impact of the rate reduction 1s not expected to have a material impact on provided and
unprovided UK deferred taxation

In December 2010 3 new Ukratmian tax rate was introduced The new corporation tax rate inthe Ukraine for 2012
was 21%, the expected corporation iax ratesn 2013 and 2014 are 19% and 16% respectively

Taxation in Ukraine - production taxes

The Group 1s subject to uncertainties relating to the determination of its tax Liabilities Ukrainian tax legistation and
practice are in a state of continucus development, with new taws coming Into effect at imes which can conflict with
others and, therefore are subject te varying interpretations and changes which may be applied retrospectively
Management s interpretation of tax legrslation as applied to the transactions and activities of the Group may at
times not coincide with that of the tax authorities As a result, the tax authonties may chatlenge transactions and
the Group may be assessed for additional 1axes, penalties and fines which could have a malerial adverse effect on
the Group s financial position and results of operations

Since PPC s inception in 1994 the Company has operated in a cegime where conflicting laws have often existed,
including in relation to effective taxes on oil and gas production Various laws and regulations have existed and have
implied a number of variable rates

PPC has at imes since 19%4 sought clarification of their status regarding 8 number of production related taxes
and has been subject to a number of such taxes at various rates, which have been paid and accounted for within
Operating Costs within the Group Inceme Staternent In Late 2009, conciding with the lead up to the Presidential
election in Ukraine, PPC was subjected to increased operstional pressures in severat areas mncluding broader
taxation

On 1 January 2010 yet another law came Into force in Ukraine in the area of production reiated tax, the Law of
Ukraine on On Rent Charges for Oil, Natural Gas and Gas Condensate which had been suspended since 2004
During 2010 conflicting laws were announced [most particularly the Law of Ukraine on Amending Certain
Legislative Acts of Ukraine ) which may be a basis for the Ukramnian Tax Authorities to assert that further
production related taxes are due from various ol and gas companies, including PPC for periods through to

31 December 2010

PPC continues to defend itself in court against action initiated by the tax authorities concerning rules of calculation
and payment of various production related taxes for the period from January to March 2007 The statutory period of
Limitation in Ukraine for such matters 1s three years [f PPC was subject to maximum production related taxes for
the periods from January to March 2007 and from Aprit 2010 to December 2010 additional production related taxes
could be approxmately twenty per cent of Ukraine gross revenues for those pereds [net of corporate tax savings),
plus interest and penalties The Group considers that the likelihood of additional production related taxes for the
pertod from May 2007 to March 2010 1s remote on the basss of tax audits completed the related tegal position and
the three year statute of imitation The Group would exhaustively chatlenge the payment of any further preduction
related taxes {over and above those it has already paid] for the period through 31 December 2010 Given the lack of
clarity over the legal position together with arguments that the Group has to defend its posion the Group
considers that no payments are likely to be made in the next 12 months

A new tax code became effective in Ukraine on 1 January 2011 replacing most of the previous tax laws The new tax
code hes removed uncertainty over the applicability of rental fee payment by PPC frem 2011 and accordingly PPC
has been biable to and has paid, rental fees during the period The fees are levied on production volumes in
accordance with a rates schedule which may change from ime to time Such payments are recorded in cost

of sales
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26, Deferred tax

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Provided deferred taxation - net $000 $ooe $000 $00D $000 $060
Fixed asset differences - - (16,6270 [13061) 116,427  [13061)
Other temporary differences 3,274 4,809 - - 3,274 4 809
Tax losses 19,424 8423 - - 19,424 8623
MNet deferred tax asset recognised 6,271 3N

A deferred tax labibty of $10 7m (2011 $12 1m)] arises in respect of PPC s activities, $5 7m 1 respect of YGE s
activities and nil (2011 $1 2m) in respect of Hungarian actwities

A deferred tax asset of $0 6m (2011 $3 Bm) has been recognised in respecl of brought forward UK losses
A deferred tax assel of $18 8m {2011 $7 9m) has been recognised in respect of Yuzhgaznergie LLC comprising
Russian tax losses

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

1 January IChargelferec 31 December
2012 in the year 2012
$000 $000 $000
Deferrad tax Liabilittes
Fixed assets differences (13061 (3.368) (16,427)
Deferred tax assets
Other temporary differences 4,809 [1.535) 3,274
Net change in recognised losses carried forward 8,623 10 801 19,424
13,432 g 266 22,698
Net deferred tax movement 3N 5900 6,271

The main rate of UK corporatron tax effective frorn 1 April 2012 was reduced from 26% to 24% Deferred tax has
been provided at 23% based on when the deferred tax is expected to unwind and the substantively enacted rate at
the reporting date

The corporation tax rate in the Ukraine for 2012 was 21% and the expecied corporation tax rates in 2013 and 2014
are 19% and 16% respectively

The deferred tax assets in respect of Russian and Ukrainian corporation tax have been recogmsed with due
consideration of the tax rate effective on the expected unwinding of those temporary differences

2012 201
Unprovided deferred taxation $000 $000
Tax losses [5,295) {3241}
Fixed asset differences [4,208] 13 365}
Other temporary differences 1134} 1112)

(9,637 {6718

$94 0m (2011 $39 7m) of the tax losses will expire principally between 2017 and 2022 (2011 2017 and 2021)
The deductible ternporary differences do not expire under current 1ax legisiation

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the unprovided deferred taxation items because it 15 not
probable that future taxable profit will be available to utilise these deductible temporary differences
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27 Earmings/iloss) per share
The calcutation of the basic and diluted earnings/llossl per share atiributable to the owners of the parent is based
on the following datz

012 20m
Earnings/{loss) $000 $000
Earmngsf{loss] for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
(profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent]
Before exceptional item 24,702 59,137
Alter exceptional item (11,335} 59,137
Number of shares 2012 2011
Basic weighted average number of shares 172,070,477 172 067 737
Diluitve potentizl erdinary shares
Share options 1,247,019 767,342
Weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 173,317,487 172,835,077

Earnings before exceptional item in 2012 of $24,701,965 (2011 $59 137 000} 15 calculated from the 2012 loss of
$%1,335,000 {2011 earnings $59 137 000) and adding back exceptional items of $45 816 000 (2011 i) less the
related deferred tax on the exceptional itemns of $9 779,000 (2011 mil)

In accordance with IAS 33 (Earnings per share} the effects of anti-dilutive potential have not been Included when
calcutating dilutwe loss per share for the year end 31 December 2012 There were 3,499,863 (2011 2 759 824]
outstanding share options at 31 December 2012, of which 1,247,010 [201% 746,518) had a potentially dilutive effect

28 Dividends
No interim dividend was paid for 2012 {201t nil) In respect of the full year 2012, the directors do not propose a final
dividend (2011 no final dvidend paid)

29 Reconciliatton of profit from operations to net cash inflow from operations
2012 20M1

$000 $000
Profit from operations 5,769 82M4
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 84,449 34327
Impairment of property plant and equipment/intangible assets 19,977 12920
Gain an disposal of property, plant and equipment (12} {9l
Share-based payment costs 2,029 1,569
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital 112,212 130821
Decrease/lincrease} in operating trade and other recewvables 4,034 (804)
Decrease in operatng trade and other payables (1,693} (4 540)
Increase i inventories (5,265} (1,327
Cash generated from operations 109,288 124,150

30 Capital commitments
Under the work programmes for the Group s exploration and development ticenses the Group had commutted
$2 Om to future capital expenditure on drilling rigs and faciliies at 31 December 2012 (2011 $4 Om]
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31 Related party transactions
The Group has taken the exemption under IAS 24 to not disclose related party transactions between wholly owned
entities of the Group and jont ventures, which are related parties and which have been eliminated on consolidation

Key management personnel are considered to comprise only the Directors The remuneration of Directors during
the year was as follows

2012 2011
$000 $000
Short-term benefits 2,949 2928
Post-employment benefits 253 254
Share-based payments equity settled 1,547 1104

4,749 4286

Further infarmation about the remuneration of individual Directors, together with the Directors interests in the
share capital of JKX 01l & Gas plc, ts provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 92 to 107

Share-based payments represents the expenses arising from share-based payments included inthe income
staternent. determined based on the fair value of the related awards at the date of grant [nole 24)

Subsidiary undertakings and jointly controtled entities

The Company s principal subsidiary undertakings including the name, country of ncorporation and proportion of
ownership interest for each are disclosed tn note B 1o the Company s separate financial slatements which lollow
these consolidated financial statements

Transactions between subsidiaries and between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation
HHE North Kft which 1s a Hungarian registered company which 1s the only proportionally consolidated entity, refer
1o note 33 for further details

32 Audit exempticns for subsidiary compantes

The Group has elected te take advantage of the full extent of the exemptions available under the Compantes Act
2004 (UK Statutory Instrument 51 2012/2301) As a result, statutory accounts will not be audited for the following
UK entities JKX Services Lirmited JKX Bulgania Limited, JKX Georgia Ltd, JKX Turkey Lid, JKX [Ukraine] Limited,
Baltic Energy Trading Lid, Eurodnil Limited, JP Kenny Exploration & Production Lirmited Page Gas Ltd,

Mid Asian Gas Ltd, Trans-European Energy Services Limited
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33 Joint ventures

In September of 2011 Horizon Nyirseg Kft, which held the Gorbehaza well interests was merged with HHE North Kit
[HHN] Orginally HHN was set up for the purpose of holding the Hernad | and Hernad |l Licences The ultimate
helding of the merged entity remained unchanged with JKX holding a 50 per cent interest, the Group s accounting
treatment was also maintained as a jointly controlled entity In 2012 the Group continued with its 50 per cent interest

and the results of HHN have been proportionally conselidated

The following amounts represent the Group s 50 per cent share of the revenue and expenses and assets and

Liabilities of HHN for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012

2012 2011

$000 $000

Revenue 6,621 11287
Expenses 20,878 9 687

Profit after tax

(14,257} 1600

Non-current assets

Property plant and equipment

2,303 18,738

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

704 208
851 2558

1,555 2846

Current babilities
Trade and other payables
Short term loan

(748} (3 321)
(5,718} (7473

Non-current habilities
Other nen-current Liabilities

11,164 {300

The administrative office of HHN and the operator of our Hungarsan joint venture are located at 1126 Budapest,

Nagy Jenou 12 Hungary

34 Events after the reporting date
$40m Convertible Bond

On 19 February the Company successfully completed the placing of US$40 mitlion of guaranteed unsubordinated
convertible bonds with institutional investors which are due 2018 The Bonds have an annual coupon of 8 per cent

per annum and a conversion price of 76 29 pence per Ordinary Share
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of JKX 01l & Gas plc

We have audited the pareni company financiat
statements of JKX 01l & Gas plc for the year ended

31 December 2012 which comprise Company balance
sheet and the Motes to the financsal statements The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in
thew preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice]

Respective responsibitities of directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors
responsibilities on page 108 the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the parent company
financial statements and for being satisfied that they
gve a true and far view Our responstbility «s to audit
and express an cpimion on the parent company financial
statements n accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing [UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply wath the Auditing
Practices Board s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report including the opinions, has been prepared
for and onty for the company s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do net 1n giving
these opinions, accept ar assume responsibility for any
other purpese or to any other person to whom this
report s shown or inte whose hands It may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the inancial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the iinancial siatements
are free from material misstatement whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
parent company s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the Directors and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition, we read all the
fimanciat and non-financial information in the Annual
Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we become aware

of any apparent material misstatements or
inconsistencies we consider the implications for

our report

Opsnion on financral statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the company s
affairs as at 31 December 2012

* have been properly prepared 1n accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimion on other matters prescribed by the
Compantes Act 2006
In our epinton

* the part of the Remuneration report 1o be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Cornpamtes Act 2006, and

+ the infermation given in the Directors report for the
financial year for which the parent company financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the parent
company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following
matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if 1n our opinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recewed from branches not visited by
us or

the parent company financial statements and the part
of the Remuneration report to be audited are not :n
agreement with the accounting records and returns
or

-

certain disclosures of Directers remuneration
specrfied by law are not made or

we have not received zll the information and
explanattons we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the group financial

Jason Burkitt [Se
for and on behall of PricawaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

8 Aprid 2013
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Company balance sheet - UK GAAP
as at 31 December
2012 2011
Note $000 $000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets 80 38
[nvestments B 17 17
197 155
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors - amounts falling due within one year c 34,389 23277
Debtors - amounts falling due after mare than one year
- Amounts owed by group undertakings ¢ 508,050 450059
- Deferred tax assets D 615 1128
Restricted cash - 2,504
Cash at bank and 1n hand 2,117 5321
545,171 489 289
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year £ (99,165) (119082)
Net current assets 446,006 370207
Net assets 446,203 370362
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up share capital F 24,657 26 657
Share premiurn account F $7.476 97 476
Other reserves
- Capital redemption reserve F 587 587
- Equity share options reserve F 6,046 4,017
- Equity Foreign currency translation reserve F (1,090 (1,090)
Profit and loss account F o 316,527 242715
Total shareholders funds F 446,203 370362

These financial statements on pages 149 to 158 were approved by the Board of Directors on 8 April 2013 and signed

on Its behalf by

Dr Paul Davies

Cynthia Dubin

Director ;a,\, / @«)u«/ Director
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Notes to the Company financial statements

A Presentation of the financial statements

Basis of preparation

The financial statements been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for financial
assets and financial liabilities (including dervative
instruments} at fair value through profit or loss and In
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
accounting standards in the United Kingdom

The financial statements have been prepared on & going
concern basis following review by the Directors of
forecast cash flows for 12 months from the date of
approvat of these financial statements in making their
assessment the Directors have considered sensitivities
to their forecast cash ilows from investments including
reducing forecast oil and gas realisations, and
ncreasing cosls

The Company s principal accounting policies are
summarised below and have been applied consistently
throughout the year and the preceding year

Tangible assets

Tangible fixed assets are slated at historic purchase
cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes the
original purchase price of the asset and the cosis
atiributable to bringing the asset to its working
candition for its intended use Depreciation i1s calculated
te write off the cost of tangible fixed assets, less their
residuat values, over therr expected uselut lives using
the straight line basis

Investments

Investments are initially measured at historic cost,
including transaction costs, and stated at cost less
tmpairment losses The Company assesses investments
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying vatue of an
investrment may not be recoverable If any such
indication of impairment exists, the Company makes an
estimate of 1ts recoverable amount Where the carrying
amount of an investment exceeds Iis recoverable
amount the investment 1s considered impawed and 1s
written down to its recoverable amount

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are imtially recorded
at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction Exchange differences arising on the
translation of monetary items are taken to the profit and
toss account Non-monetary items are measured in
terms of hustorical cost in foreign currency and are
translated using the exchange rates of the original
transaction

The presentation and functional currency of the
Company 1s the US Dollar The US$/E exchange rate
used for the revaluation of the closing balance sheet at
31 Decemnber 2012 was $1/€0 6 (2011 $1/£0 8]

Share based payments

The Company 1ssues equity-settled share-based
payments to the Executive directors and senior
management Equity-setiled share-based payments are
measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair
value in the Cormpany 1s determined al the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments and 1s
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period based onthe Company s estimaie of shares that
will eventually vest At each subsequent balance sheet
date the Company calcutates the estimated cumulative
charge for each award having regard to any change in
the number of options that are expected to vest and the
expired portron of the vesting period The movemnent in
curnulative expense since the previous reporting date
relating to awards lor services to subsidiaries 1s
expensed in the profit and loss of those subsidtaries
Once an option vests, no further adjustment 1s made to
the aggregate amount expensed The corresponding
entry 1s shown in eguity in the Company The fair value
which is calculated using the binomial model takes into
account two perfermance criteria, baing the actual
increase In the Company s share price and a
comparison of the actual increase in the share price to
the change in FTSE F! until the end of June 2004, the
FTSE Sluntil the end of February 2006 and the higher of
the FTSE 2501 and the FTSE Ol & Gas Producers Index
subsequent to that The expected life of the options
depends on the behavicur of the option holders, which
Is incorporated into the option model consisient with
historic data

Leasing

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease The Company has no
finance leases

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilites are recognised
on the Company s halance sheet when the Company
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative inancial
instruments in line with FRS 29 - Financiat
Instrumenis Disclosures and FRS 26 - Financiat
Instruments Recognition and Measurement

Since 2011 the Company has used a derivative financial
wstrument {derivative) to manage 118 exposure to ol
price fluctuations The pre-paid swap transaction with
Credit Swisse Internatienal has been structured to
enable repayment by the Campany from future sales of
oil Under this structure, the Company has sold forward
36,000 bbl/month of crude to November 2012 All
obligations under the pre-paid swap agreement
concluded with a final payment in December 2012
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This dervative was initially recorded at cost, including
transaction costs and subsequently carred at fair value
All changes in fair value were recorded as financiat
income or expense in the year in which they arise

Any such derivative was inttially recorded at fair value
on the date at which the contract was entered into and
subsequently re-measured at fair value on subseguent
reporting dates

A financial babibity 1s derecognised when the obligation
under the Liability 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

Fair value 1s the amount for which & financial asset,
Labitity or instrument could be exchanged between
knowledgeabte and willing parties in an arm s length
transaction It1s determined by reference to quoted
markel prices adjusted for estimated transaction costs
that would be incurred n an actual transaction, or by
the use of established estimation techniques such as
oplion pricing models and estimated discounted values
of cash flows

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand comprise cash in hand and
current balances with banks and similar institutions,
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
Cash 1s short-term with an original matunity of less
than 3 months highly liquid investrments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue

Restricted cash

Restricted cash s disclosed separately on the face of
the balance sheet and denoted as restricted when it 1s
not under the exclusive control of the Company

Financial biabsjlities and equity

Financial hiabilittes and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument is any
contract that ewidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Company after deducting all of its Liabibities
Equity mstruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds recewed net of direct issue costs

Dividends

interim dividends are recognised when they are paid to
the Company s sharehoiders Final dvidends are
recognised when they are approved by shareholders

Treasury shares

The consideration paid for shares repurchased by the
Company and held as treasury shares 1s recognised as
a reduction in shareholders funds through the profit
and loss account reserve No gan or l0ss 1s recognised
In the profit and loss account

Related parties

The Company s exempt under the terrms of Financial
Reporting Standard B Related Party Transactions, from
disclosing related party transactions with wholly owned
entities of the JKX Group

Cash flow statement

The Company financial statements are included within
the publicly available consolidated financial statements
of the Group Consequently, the Company has not
prepared a cash flow staternent under the exemption
provided by Financial Reporting Standard 1

Tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign
tax, is provided at amounis expecied to be paid [or
recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s recognised n respect of all timing
differences that have onigimated but noi reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events have
accurred at that date that will resuli in an obligation to
pay more, or a nght to pay less or to receive more tax
The exceplion to this 1s that deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that the Directers consider
that it 1s more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pertods in
which timing differences reverse based on tax rates
and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date
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B. Fixed asset investments
The net book value of unlisted fixed assel Investments comprise

21z

2011

$000 $000
Cost
At 1 January 17 6,769
Additions - 28
Repayment of share capital by subsidiary - (6,680]
At 31 December 117 n7
Net book amount
At 371 December 117 M7
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At 31 December 2012, the principal subsidiary undertakings of JKX Gil & Gas plc were
% held Country of
lordinary  incorporation and
Name Business shares]  areaofoperation
Adygea Gas BV Holdeng 100 CD Netherlands
Baltic Catering Sernces Ot & gas services 100 00 Ukraine
Baltic Energy Trading Lid" 01l & gas exploration and production 100 00 LUK
Eastern Ukrainian Pipeline Ltd Oil & gas services 100 00 Ukraine
EuroDnii Limited Ol & gas exploration production and services 100 00 UK
JKX Bulgaria Limited* Ol & gas exploration and production 100 00 UK
JKX Bulkan BG EAD Ol & gas exploration and production 100 00 Bulgara
JKX Carpathian BY Oit & gas exploraiton and production 100 00 Netherlands
JKX Hungary BV Ot & gas exploration and production 100 00 Netherlands
JKX [Navtobi] Limited Oil & gas exploration and production 106 00 Cyprus
JKX (Nederland] B V Finance and Holdmg 100 00 Netherlands
JKX Ondava BV Qul & gas exploration and produclien 10000 Netherlands
JKX Rusland BY Finance 10000 Netherlands
JKX Services Limited™ Services 10000 UK
JKX Slovaksa BV Oil & gas exploration and productien 100 00 Netherlands
JKX Ukraine BY Finance and Holding 160 00 Netherlands
JP Kenny Exploration &
Production Limited® Finance and Holding 100 00 UK
Kharkiv Investment Company Holding 10000 Ukraine
PAGE Gas Ltd" Ot & gas exploration and production 10000 UK
Poltava Gas BV Holding 10000  Netherlands
Poltava Petraleum Company D1t & gas exploration and production 100 00 Ukraine
Shevchenko Farm Land lease 6200 Ukraine
Southern Russia Gas B Y Finance 100 DO Netheriands
Southern Russia Gas Cooperatief W A Firance and Holding 100 00 Nethertands
Trans-European Energy Services
Limited” 01l & gas exploration production and services 10¢ 00 UK
Yuzhgazenerqie |LC Od & gas exploration production and services 100 00 Russia

* Held direcily by JKX Oil & Gas ple All other companies are held through subsidiary underiakings

In the opiion of the Directors the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net assets
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C Debtors
2012 2011
$000 $000
Amaounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 34,075 23,096
Other debtors - 129
Prepayments 314 52

34,389 23277

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounis ewed by group undertakings 508,050 450059

$508m (2011 $462 Bm) owed by subsidiary undertakings bears interest based on LIBOR plus a mark up and s
not secured Amounts owed by group undertakings falling due within one year include a prowsion for impairment
s mt (2011 $nill The amounts determined as indwidually impaired were balances due from group subsidiary
undertakings where the future cash flows from these companies were determined to be unlikely to be sufficient
to repay the amounts owed

D Deferred tax
012 201

$000 $000

At 1 January 1,128 5737

Profit and loss account transfers {5131 14 609!

At 31 December 615 t2s
Deferred tax asset comprises

Losses carried forward to future periods 415 1128

615 1128

2012 2011

Unprovided deferred tax $000 $000

Fixed asse! differences - 9

Other timing differences 89 82

89 bl

Neither the deductible timing differences nor the tax losses expire under current tax legistation Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised 1n respect of the unprovided deferred taxation items because 1t 1s not probable that future
taxable profit will be available to utilise these deductible timing differences

The UK Finance Act 2012 reduced the main rate of corporation tax from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 and to 23%
from 1 April 2013 A further reduction to 21% from 1 April 2014 was also announced but 1s not expected to have a
matersal impact on provided and unprovided UK deferred taxation
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E Creditors

02 2m
$000 $000

Ameounts falling due within one year
Bank loan - 35,930
Derwatwe liability - 3,169
Amounls owed to group undertakings 96,471 79 430
Corporation tax 1,521 -
Other creditors 514 407
Accruals 459 146
99,165 119082

In 2011, the Company s Bank loan retales to a term loan [pre-paid swap] which the Company enlered inta on

14 June 2011 with Credit Suisse International This was structured to enable repayment by the Company from
future sales of oil in the Group Under this structure, the Company has sold forward 36,000 bbl/moath of crude

at $94 00 Urals Med per barrel while retaining vaiue If prices rise above $130 per bbl Thas dertvative {forward sale)
was Inttially recorded at cost, including transaction costs and subsequently carred at fair value and was settled
on a monthly basis through to November 2012 Atl obligations under the pre-paid swap agreement concluded
wilth a final payment in December 2012 Alt changes in fair value were recorded in profit or toss in the year in

which they arise

The fair value was determined using forward oil price curves which represent the Company s estimates of the prices

at which a buyer or seller could contract today for delivery of oil or settiement of an oil-price contract, at future
dates The Company has based forward price curves upon readily obtainable market price quotations, as the oii
contract does not extend beyond the actively traded portion of these curves

A $2 9m gain was recognised in the Company profit and loss account in respect of the fair value movements in the

derwative [2011 $2 9m charge)

F Called up share capital and reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Share capital, denominated in Sterling, was as follows

2012 2012 2012 201 20m 2011

Number €000 $000 Number £0C0 $000
Authorised
Ordinary shaves of 10p each 300,000,000 30,000 300,000000 30000
Allotted, catted up and fully paid
Openting balance of 1 January 172,070,477 17,207 26,657 172,020477 17202 26 649
Exercise of share options - - - 50000 5 8
Ctosing balance at 31 December 172,070,477 17,207 26,657 172,070,477 17207 26 657
Of which the following are shares held in treasury
Treasury shares held at 1 January and 31 December 402,771 40 77 402,771 49 77

The Company purchased no treasury shares during 2012 (2011 none] There were no treasury shares used in 2012
{2011 none) to settle share options There are no shares reserved for 1ssue under options or contracis As at
31 December 2012 the market value of the treasury shares held was $0 5m {20711 $68m)
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Movements in the shareholders funds during the year were as follows

Equity Fareign Profit Taotal
Share Capital share currency And share-
Called up premium  redemption optrong  transtation loss hoiders
share capitat account reserve reserve reserve account funds
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
At 1 January 2011 26 649 97 363 587 2,448 (1 090] 193777 319734
Exercise of employee share options 8 13 - - - - 121
Share option charge - - - 1,569 - - ¥ 569
Profit for the hinancial year - - - - - 56 145 56,145
Didend - - - - - (7,207 [7,207)
At 31 December 2011 26,657 97,476 587 &7 [1090) 242715 370,362
At 1 January 2012 26 657 97 476 587 4,017 {1,090] 242715 3703562
Share option charge - - - 2,029 - - 2029
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 73812 738312
At 31 December 2012 26,657 97,4746 587 6,046 {1,090} 316,527 446,203

G Profit and loss

The Company has elected to take the exemnplion under section 408 of the Companies Act 2004, to not present the
parent company profit and loss sccount The net profit for the parent company was $73 8m prior to the payment
of dwidends (2011 $54 1m prior to payment of dividends)

H Share-based payments

Share options

Share options are granted to Executive Directors and senier management based on perfoermance ¢riteria
The scheme rules are described in the Directors Remuneration Report and repeated below All share-based

payments are equity seitled

At 31 December 2012 there were outstanding options under various employee share option schemes, exerctsable
during the years 2013 to 2022 {2011 2012 to 2021], to acquire 3,499,863 (2011 2 759 824] shares of the Company at
prices ranging from €0 00 to £3 15 per share (2011 £0 00 to £4 54) The vesting period for 3 444 424 of the share
options 1s 3 years, with an exercise period of 7 years making a 10 year maximurn term For 55,439 of the share
options granted to Executive Directors in January 2012 in lieu of their bonus the vesting pened was 1 25 years with
an exercise period of 8 75 years making a 10 year maximum term

The followtng table illustrates the number and weighted average prices [WAEP) of, and movements in share

options during the year

2012 2012 20M 201

Numnber WAEP Number WAEP

Outstanding as at 1 January 2,759,824 194 32p 2593724 211 63p
Granted during the year 1,999,520 58 &7p 887800 20433p
Surrendered/lapsed during the year (1,259,481) 212 25p (6717000 277 60p
Exercised during the year ! - - [50000] 15150p
Outstanding at 31 December 3,499,863 1037 2759824 19432p
Exercisable at 31 December 241,424 12297 297924 12838p

1) Weighted average market price at exercise N/A (2011

291 7pl
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For the share options outstanding as at 31 Decermber 2012, the weighted average remaining contractual life 1s
8 2years (2011 7 7 years)

During the year share options were granted in accordance with the share option schemes, the Discretionary Share
Option Scheme [ DSOS ) and the Performance Share Ptan | PSP ), which were introduced n 2010 They reflect the
best practice aspects recommended by the Association of Brnitish insurers following the publication of their
guidelines :n March 2001 (the ABI Guidelines)

2012 Share Option Schemes

DsS0S

The DSOS 1s made up of two parts Options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company granted under Part A are
Approved Options and options to acquire Shares granted under Part B of the DS0S are Unapproved Options
No consideration shall be payable for the grant of an Option

1,188,600 (2011 575 900) options were granted under DSOS 1n 2012 The weighted average exercise price of options
granted under DSOS 15 99p {2011 315p] For these options 1o vest there has to be an increase in the Group s
Earnings Per Share [ EPS | growth over the performance period measured over the 3 consecutive calendar years
commencing from the date the options were granted The weighted average fair value of options granted during the
year under the 0S0S was 26 8p per option (2011 159 &p]

PSP

PSP are granted solely io Execulive Directors Subject to shareholder approval at the AGM, Executive Oirectors will
receive awards under the 2010 Performance Share Ptan in the form of il cost options No consideration 1s required
to be paid for the grant or exercise of an Option

810,920 (2011 311,900} options were granted under PSP in 2012 The PSP opliens provide a conditional right to
acquire shares at nil cost subject to the satisfaction of the perfermance conditions and continued employment with
the Group For these options to vest a comparison is performed between the Group s TSR against the FTSE 250
index thalf the options] and the All-Share 01l & Gas Producers index [other half of options) The weighted average
fair value of options granted during the year under the PSP was 55 5p per option (2011 184 3p)

Pre 2012 Share Option Schemes

In 2009, share options were granted in accerdance with The New Approved Share Option Scheme and the New
Unapproved Share Option Scheme [collectively the 2001 Share Option Schemes | that were introduced 1n 2001
They reflect the best practice aspects recommended by the Asseciation of British Insurers following the publication
of their guidelines in March 2001 [the ABI Guidelines )

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2009 under the New Approved Share Option Scheme and the
New Unapproved Share Option Scheme was 56 $0p per option

Fair value of share options granted

The fair vatue of options granted under the DSOS 15 estimated as at the date of grant using a vaniance of the
Binomial model, taking into account terms and conditions upon which the options are granted, which includes the
performance condition related to the Company s earnings per share direclly No dividends are paid on shares under
the scheme prior io exercise

The fair value of options granted under the PSP 15 estimated as at the date of grant using a varant of the Monte
Carlo model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options are granted, which includes the
performance condition retated te the TSR directly No dividends are paid on shares under the scheme prior to
exercise

The fair value of share options previously granted under the 2001 Share Option Schemes is estimated as at the date
of grant using a variant of the standard binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options are granted, which includes the performance condition related to the Company s share price directly
The performance condition based on performance relative to other companies 1s modeled with a Monte Carlo
model

The total share based payment charge for the year was $2 0m {2011 $1 6m}
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The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the options granted in the years ended 31 December 2012
and 31 Decemnber 2011 The expected future volatility has been determined by reference to the hrstorical velatitity

2012 201 2012 201
Ds0s D505 P5pP PSP
Dividend yield 3 7%-5 1% 16% 32%-37% 16%
Expected share price volatiity 42%-43% 65% 35%-42% 45%
Risk free interest rate 0 6%-0 8% 19% 03%-0 6% 19%
Exercise price 97 5p-154 50p  31500p D 00p 0 00p
Expected life of option lyears] 390-410 340 125-300 300
Weighted average share price 10887p 239 %3p 10887p 239 93p

| Auditors’ remuneration
2092 201t
$000 $000

Audit services

Fees payable to company auditors for the audit of the parent company 40 40
40 4D

J Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the Directors is disclosed in the audited section of the Rernuneration report on pages 92 to
107, which form part of these financial statements

K Dividends
No interim dividend was paid for 2012 [2011 nul} In respect of the full year 2012, the directors do not propase a final
dividend (2011 no finat dwvidend paid)

L Operating lease commitments
At the reporting date, the Company has annual lease agreements in respect of properties for which the payments
extend over a number of years

2012 201
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring $000 $000
After five years - land and buildings 556 532

556 532
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Five year financial record
Year ended 31 December
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
$m $m $m tm %m
Revenue
~ 0l 403 815 788 764 1218
- Gas 1222 1431 1129 1181 831
-LPG 186 109 - - -
- Management services/other 17 14 12 20 21
Total 20238 2369 192% 196 5 2070
Production based taxes (47 4) (67 1) [52) (4 B) (40
Write off of exploration costs and evaluation costs (49 129 (137 (50} {6 9]
Exceptional item -
provision for impatrment of Hungarian ol and gas assets (15 1) - - - -
Excepticnal item -
accelerated depreciation of Ukrammian ol and gas assets 1307 - - - -
Exceptional item - impairment of Russian assets - - (74 6] - -
Other cost of sales 176 8) (49 &) (511 (53 5 151 1)
Total cost of sales (1749 1129 6) [144 6] (62 5l 162 0}
Gross profit 280 073 483 1340 1450
Adminisirative expenses 212 257 (253 (14 6} {127)
{Lossl/gain on forergn exchange (10 05 {2 4) (23 69
Gain on disposal/impairment of investrment - - - 25 -
Profit from operations before exceptional item 516 821 950 1196 1254
Profit from operations after exceptional item 58 821 204 1196 125 4
Net other income and interest 4 1) - 04 03] 22
Profit before tax 146 821 208 193 127 6
Taxation (129} 229 04 (34 0) 149 4)
[Lossl/prafit attributable to owners of the parent (11 3) 591 212 853 782
Ordinary dividends on equity shares - 72 32 23 13 6]
Earnings per share before exceptional iiem fcents) 14 36 34 37 4756 5423 49 85
Earnings per share after exceptional item [cents) (6 59) 3437 1238 5423 £9 85
Group operating margin (%) 29 346 106 609 60 6
Employment of group capital
Non-current assets 5299 5601 4608 3759 303 4
Net current assets/[liabilities) R 80 [32 4) 268 631 423
Non-current liabilitres {26 0] 209 (189) (34 7) (31 5)

511 ¢ 506 8 4687 404 3 334 2

Group capital employed

Capital and reserves 5119 5068 4687 404 3 33472
5119 506 8 4687 404 3 3342

Net funds

Cash and cash equivalents 120 191 420 T4 4 64 8

Restricted cash 0é 28 - - -

Total cash 126 289 620 74 4 648

Net gearing [%) 2¢ 80 N/A N/A N/A
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Glossary Directors and advisors
2P reserves Proved plus probable Directors
3P reserves Proved, probable and possible Niget Moore
P50 Reserves and/or resources estimates Or Paul Davies
that have a 50 per cent probability of Cynthia Dubin
being met or exceeded Martin Miller
AIFR All Injury Frequency Rate Peter Dixon
Dipesh Shah OBE
Bcf Bilion cubic feet Lord Oxford
Bcm Billion cubic metres Alastair Ferguson
bepd Barrel of condensate per day Richard Murray
boe Barrel of oil equivalent
hoepd Barrel of oil equivalent per day Company Secretary
Limor Gonen
bapd Barret of oil per day
bpd Barrel per day Registered office
bwpd Barrels of water per day 6RCavendlzh Sgualre ;Dndon W1G 0PD
egistered in Englan
cfpd Cubic feet per day Nu?'nber 3050“%
GPF Gas Pracessing Facility
HHN HHE North Kit Reg|5trar5
Hryvna The tawful currency of Ukramne Eguinsti
HSECQ Health Safety Environment, Aspect House, Spencer Road
Community and Quality Lancing, West Sussex BN DA
KP1 Key Performance tndicatal
LiBOR London knterBank Dffered Rate Selicitors
Atlen & Overy LLP
LPG Liquefied Petroleum Gas One Bishops Square, London E1 8AD
LTt Lost Time Injuries
Mbbl Thousand barrels Erml:lpfgbal?kegs 1
Mboe Thousand barrels of ol equivalent ank ol scoliand pic
Mci Thousand cubic feet The Mound, Edinburgh EH% 1YZ
MMctd Mill:on cubic feet per day Independent auditers
MMbbl Millson barrels PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
MMboe Million barrels of oil equivalent Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
PRC Poltava Petroleum Company 1 Embankment Place, Landon WC2N 6RH
Roubles The lawiul currency of Russia Financial advisors
5q km Sguare kitemetre Hawkpoint Partners Limited
TD Total depth 41 Lothbury, London EC2R 7AE
% United States Dollars
us United States stockbrokers
Brewin Dolphin investment Banking
VAT Value Added Tax 48 St Vincent Street, Glasgow G2 515
YGE Yuzhgazenergie LLE

Conversion factors 6 000 standard cubic feet
of gas =1 boe

Oriel Secunittes Limited
125 Wood Street, London EC2A 2HS




